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estocod
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yZOZZ 
oarcol@o5 lf qa,erlc,

dEd
Date

EOc esEztr eo2$c oocoocd esOcoo9- 2022 Oc64 31 Qorlal qOeszr.l O6eac^r eeqoc Q pgrr
gzs:ccoztr oto oOa:zrl ooadzsr oc 6c^rcOa gOco:rac B@AqO 2018 q.zst 19 qdo: eJcdzo Eoaa:
erarorJ 12 Oa Ooaldo gzocdO SocfzocSesd Oc6acO.

1. $gr: gzocoo:

1.1 arzr}rJOco<62::o zog gzlco

8@c esEzl eozoc oocoarcd eo@coo@ ("ee@co9-") 2022 OcSq 31 Qz::O ge> zlalaJO

gzf'r)sezrlc6 eool dQozlzri qOeozrl OSoco eoqtoc Q Eai65<r qcqcco@ gzooaazrco E@zsr@

oOzs:ei8o@ gzoco:?t6 esao dQo::'lzd gOozd OSeoc,s eoqtoc pqgl gOcto gzo'rcaarrrco eoo pe>
gzorccaa OgO qqcg osOarzrf, rrrc6t"csecD6 OlQorf <86Ozr:O<r gdesald O@zrl eogzrllot 2022

@c54 31 QorrrrrJ qOeoerl O6eoco eoqarc Q pg> gzsrcoaa @ g"zoc Ae5cz::crri$zo esOce5OcQ

e3z::drJooi qc<dQg@ O>OaJOcoO 154(1) O>OeJdcO es@eo es"ocoCSr:O dco8co gb2 2018
q.zot 19 qdrrr dcdzs: Eo<64 omoal EEEOcrrr gzocdO @cocrj EOcr:'ro coOorJ 0co6rrrc^:

zo:dr: gQ. qcdQp@ O>OeiOcoO 154 (6) O>OajOcO gzo:cdO OcoccJ OcSacO codc zo:cgoc$Q

oc5@o@zrfqoO eomcozl zo:dp eroD.

@cocr} Oc5zlcoO naJaJOco<62rc.3 zsrg @zr:co eoqarc erqzrrg ozocOoai Deiord n6 qE zodr€
O@rrJ Oa Ogol@ to1d, eo@cco.@ 9e, gzo'rco:2r AgzrJ 2022 @c5o2 31 Qr::O pg> zlaJalOco

eoal dQorlrrl qOeorrl OSeeco eoqtoc dOcod geo @coczoc6alOco roc pqgl gOco @ g.zs'rc

E6Ozs:d<t 9@6090 qpzb?eo eozr)i rrr escOcd<6 aaJzr}Oc^:zsJ SeAe zodzl OO Oc

qdrr}:lc Q 
gaco oO.

1,2 araJrJOco<62rrcs Zsl€ Ozrrco eoqarc esqar@

(q) gOcarrrr oc arlSd8o@ Ecoq@ eoqaoc Q gOeoca g:doOc8ed op 8co0@O ood
202012021 pg> OSeoco r;gQ ooe{co@ro: eolog@zo:d1Ozo;O qz:2Q ooE@ ogee

Q.13,000,000 zsl eOrQ 609 E?rd qOescar oo8@ OQOdoo$ OOzrrczs:@

6y.27,892,044 A. o9@ opoqpo Eqig r:15o@Q 6,nlzr g4d1 ocoE@ Eceq@

6€@0 od omc68@ toc AdB Ecoq@, qqcg Ocoq@ 6€00 rod ozlcozocO

oOzroJ <rc^:E@ E€gO od 689 oarJr2oOr:'f eo@cogCEa OSeeocd gOceirz:.r toc

olEdEog Ecoq@ 6L.21,892,044 6?rJ ?t) oOzlal <tcoE@ E.goO ocrJec^r

6L.8,891,994 6?rJ gfloozrl qzo'lOc 60€ qb)6 d"coO OzrJzoO coOoal Oz:r

qaldzocd@ 6.5oO ocrJeeo di.13,000,000 6zrJ Ol6ocorrf qzsloc 6@6. d qeo
eo@cogC8zl OSoooi ectoco 6L.21,892,044 Arl gto<6rs:cs A 646.
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(qr) oorooc6 6,ezlarcOcerf Ozl roOOc rocdzsrQO:dO dodEO arQ a:Odc 2014 OSeeoc.j

8a 2021 o5ee6 qa:foc o@ dgoc6zrloarrrf qco zs:d oolr, 60g dzo:q oEzrczs:g
6L.14,962,309 zsJ s)c<dcccocdcoo ogleo<6co 680 oopoo dce oc<doc@cd6o
ooEco gq oOzlczsroa'l ogeo o5e o6zlcoar 8o ge> gzo:ro:a a2g qzsroc

6ae.

(qr) dcej> O>coc6 oqocS4o9ala2oO qO>zsle e3zrdcglocrj q"zor PED/S lCFCLlO3l06
(i) 96a:2022 qogfd 08 Q-td 00to qo6 PEDlPl04l24(1) q6r;, 2021 qoglel 06

Q-rd €8 qeo os@cco@ EBzrI ocSSzoo goccotri?ic ?5'r1o roc<dc 01@ zo:6:r:g
68o@ qcqccoogal IcocoO 50 zor g@c<5coml o@<6zsi oaiOzolcozrfocr} a":c5c^:eecOarco

@a erqzl@o @ces e?rzo p@zs: olQeo es@cm 6,o8@cozoro cooaJo qo>zsleo

@<do6 qpQdco c^:ooaf QB Q@mc ogeo ooEco gb2 go?rJ, ee@co@ E8zrl eooqcoJ

ogeo oadozo:coafocJ p@zs: olQo oc Sozl Ecoq@ Q@arco corr: oqozo:E dzs:z:2o

oqzl@ oseo62rJ oozr eo@cogc8z:: o6oco n2E- 67.48,431,198 zo Q6 Qoz::c oo$E>
zod gi6 qord grd 6t.8,242,375 mi OpoCA EE EOczr: OgO o0ro16 OO
EBzsJee<Eco Eco.

(ft) zrlDorzr 68@ ogo qqcg Ecoq@ ft8o ooaoorrJ 2007 o6eooc$Q qafdzocd@
ogeo eOcgzrI AOO 61.2,143,772 zsl <B6Ocoa r.,t6 dOgq Eo6z:: Qzrrco Oa EOq
8c,soc ozrrcdA€ qr:d d@ qai6zs:cd@ gocozrf dgoc8coc arorQdl zodcor8go
eo@co@O oarcarldO 606.

(e) 2008 eoc 2009 OSeaOgQ EqdzslocllcO qd6tJ ooros)cd oOOcoO OOzorO o6rco
@OOcO orcdO zsrOge 2E)€ 6gOc8ocozo2 E8rri pgSOce gOczrr oOOc eo"65.qooi
8O EEdnlococO oOOcO oOar gOcozlc.: zodar eq oeJ3orocd ozlcco EqdmloocO
coOCcOO oocOOl@ oOpOO ogc8 dd ozo:@zri9 ococ8eJa ooiOc gQ>ai6c?n

oozl eodoc c^:oc oocot cd oarco oocoolo@ toc olo8o@ e€ oeeo dr. 630,550
b 9qezsl oe@co@o o.oczod 6D@ aoorr}ooc,:z:"1do dgoc6coco Ed1{oo orocp
2o€ a0 EElcocozor E6aao E€o EEce dgoc6coc Ear.l 2022 @c5q 15 goa
pqg eo9cco@ oOza ooE@O bOSe zod 6Q6. ezolz:: gqe or:6 OSeoOgO

o1@8co SA 0O6J eogcogC8zl OSeeoci qcqcco@zo'l oeeo ?rg?ricco16@ ou}4oOr:'.f
ee@cogCEz:: OSeeooi qcqcco@ 4.630,550 6rrf Ol8ocourI qnlOc dOG.

(6) eoOcogC8a O5eeooi oeoeA)5 dmle<6 OcBzo:co, oeiOzo OzrlQ dzsfeo<6 Oc6zocs, E4f
6rl'a<a oc8zorcs ?rr @c5coe.do ?uc oodeggoo gsC 6alea<m ocBzoco coqtol

8€oo€zrJ 67.10,469,271, 67.771,225, q.572,730 at 67.47,054 6l Og)o.o?rJ
e3zs'rQo oomczo@ 67.11,260,280 zo: Ecoq@m} qdc q1d qad d@ Ecoqo@zrJ 9q6
oSeocoo qqcg oozrrczoro oa 61.3,692,175a g@c<6co gQ6coo zolg ooEonj
ogoe E$@aa at6 oz::cdQ6. rroq, ood o5oooi gQ6coo zog dnloo ocBzs:

Ecoqo <8.goo osJeeco oo:, 67.3,966,559 zsi es@cogcEzl oSoooi 6r.l!a6 oc6r'r
Ocoq@O or1Q89 oztcozo)co pg> gzocaa?, eg eJ"s)O OaJzor@ c^:OozrJ qzsloc 6@6.
eJ Eao eoocogJ8zl o6ood erto6 eoto ej.o@ ozdzo:@E ooaczol@
67.27 4,3 846211 q E o oar co E q16 a O O 6 8z6leo <6 cs E c^r.
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(e) Otocg9 zorcScocg 9Q68O ro) qgalOl$cec oaiOcOzr} eooozr e q

ozsrcalpcoJzoftOzrl oodoqo:rrzq ocl 2022 Oc54 31 Qzr OzrrEO @ces 06 gml@Oc

qi6 Ootoal eC€g oz:lreq Ozo:r2 OO:rnzog g 61.371,403 a d.qp@ gqC qqre
oc5o:Oco?tfoozrJ E@esc 6OgC orrrczs:d ooEco gq ocrJeocoml ogee qzslOc 606.

(eu) Oocg@ zorcScocg eoqoc Q Oc58zo zsleoce g@cc6a 61.516,689 nl Ozl qad Oorcg@

zorcScocg zsleoce ogeo O6eeco qg 6gq@orr:zr:d qalool 61.274,290 z6J og&. C

qpO e5"o@ oacOzl OaJzo@ aoc OSeocooo$ gctocs 6L.242,399 6rrf g8o<rarce E

gid OO 66zs'ioerco Ec^:.

(O) 202012021 9e> OSeooo$Q et5c,s gA qcqcco@zsi ogeo Eqg@cozr r..,-s6r:, eE
6L.542,000 zo q8zo OcBzo qcqoco@ OOrnczor@O qqcgo gOSaa OSeoodQ pqef

er5 qrd qr:d dco <rloiolE E€OO ard 66@ oOpOO gOSarr: OSeooC qEzs:

Oc8zo qcqcco@ 6€O0 Oid 680 orla2oOal eJ.o@ OaJzs:@ toc O5eooj gcroco dg
g@c6ocszd qtzi:zs'loedQE q(6 OO 66zolee€5c,: Eco.

(d) es9cclo@ srOCcO?rJ eoq?oc EEg@ gzorcdO coOOc oaiOzs:8af eoloE@O

goocooceooi E@ otrlo2oOrrf @6a{ag eolesg@ ar 6,e:o{oao: oaiOc eoe56zr)

oese{o:@zs: qccearzr:cezsl oOdrrJ gOc oozl 6A€ 6L.362,500 2ol e.E elozo'r6
qcqcco@ ogeo Eqg@ on 68@ oOpOO r:OgdOoJ rJ.o@ Oo6@zsl ogeo qnlOc

6a6.
(O) OSeo 04 8O 12 qzs'lOc zocgonl r:g E@zor@ orrrcerr 6L.796,000 zo EcoE oo8co

ge e"E qlozord 8€aq oeoccocOgc E@zs:@ ozlcocrrforrJ o:9 qcqcco@O o16@0
6Oge ozlczs:d d"co@ 0o6@20l ogeo qmlOc 806.

(o) 202012021 E€O OSoocJ oc8ooCe5a go> 6qeo@ fta:ezf €8 go>, dez::€

eorocl, oocOzll8@ gO> oeo Octozl 99z16 ozo:cOoi coacQood 6L.2,441,181 zo

6,er:zlcOoszo'l OcSac 0 q,6 qad d ee@OzrJOocorrJ E@5o:?rrcezrf Sgzord 0o60
grJarrrfoozrJ qcozo:d o16@ oOpOO 6,czlz::cOoc$ goco oOz::z:J erFco gA
OOzrczo@zsl oeee geD gzorsa?r o2g qzs'IOc 606. ogO d6 6,eaacOco 8€aq
zodr€ o6zsJeeczod gzst 67.2,010,196 zo: OOarczo@ coOOcO Ag 6zf)bf omcQ

ajOcOd OaJzo@ Ocaocorfq 67.15,470 zor OOzlczo@d ge o6ooCe3zs> q8z::9

dEocozsl oosdzo ozacooO qlqgzrJ E-go2 OOq e9 qEO g&5 (DaOcoO eor:ls

6,erar:cOco Q.415,514 zo} oges qz:'rcOd<5cs r,.,fiao| OOaJ eotocerd E8?rJ Eo<6zs:cs

oOo OcSr:czord 646. zrl96f gO5a:r: O5eooodQ d es@OaJOoc,szlJ 68g
ar1@8Onl 8g oarczod arOgdOal 6L.2,441,181 zo 6,czrzlcOco et5csge
OOrrrczo'r@m} oeeo gers gzoocaztr a2g q1zol0@ orJa2oOzrf r3.o@ ozlcOtrr OziJzor@

6L.2,010,196 62tJ aoc e3"co@ OaJzs:@ 6L.15,470 6:rf qOomloa{d1E q16 qr:d
O5eaooi ersrco 6L.415,514 6:rlq gEo<6mco E q,6 OO E8zsls<rco Eco.

(^) grrfoOcSed Qarco oqzs:@ zodco86al O5rs6O gQc@ zrrlO 6dzorcga2rr qcqccs@ rrg?rr

o1E@ ee@ccoo@ gdozddco oO. d qpO ood OSeccoO qq)€ tllr O@ OSeooo$Q

et5coge o1O 6rJzs:rGe2r qcEoco9 ogeo rBggcoz:l zodzl gq d1.6,045,000 mr

6edzr:c(,e2r qcqcco@O Eqc€O gO5zs:a OSeooo$Q 9qC erSoOQ Oco EEC <rcoo16
6€@0 a(d 680 oopoo gOSr:zr OesoS dedzs:csezr qcqcco@ 6€90 A76a6
q1a. zlOQ, 906r:zl OSocoO gQc€ 4.1,264,000 zo dedzorco:a qcqcco@ ood
OSeooo$Q er6cs gq qcqcc^:@n} ogeo r8g@oz:'rzs:6 qtE gard dce 6O(6q oz:":czo:d

r
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(oo)

gOSr:zn OSooc{Qq gcqcco@ g15@ml oees algzrooo2r qral. d qAO en}a
Egoorzr 669 oulqoozrf d"coo oalzsrg roc oSeor,i crsr6 6t.7,309,000 6zrJ
qEco<rzrrce E q,6 OO 6Szsles€6ce Ece.

202012021qczrcedzs: oocorocd oarcs)c06fo qEr€o 8g zo:dzl eq dcorq es8nleo<r

OcSarc toc EcrJogleo<6 OcSrlcOzrl oOpoOrl 2021 qodC 27 Qol ocoO:r gq
61.732,188 nl qcocor: @eQ oreg qafdarcd@ ogeo Ozrlzo@ 6€O2o0 us6 a6
qi6 q66, 8co Ecoq@ oeee Eg@orazod ozlc66o@al O5eood gcarco OO

g@c<5ocer:'f gEor<aco E 646.

mlDoa 68@ oopoozrj oo8@ qoJdzorcd@ s€o qg e.500,000 a: qzifdzocd@

Sco8@zsl OrdQ oees Ol6ocozrf esOtozrJ EO orla2oOal qqc€ Ecoq@ OO

g@c<6ocorrj olsoco:rf qnfoc 6A€ qzrrd qafdzorcd@ E6oo ocrJoco oo
goc<6ocorrf qQoozrl qmloc 6Q&. o@ orlqoorrf oEesooi ecg)(o d@ g@c<6ocsr:'.1

qOarzsloodQ O 6Ae.

@ e "^, EqqOzs6<r 9@6 1 E 69 aoal6,a gr..,n6O OSeocezs.r zocgS@cO g26f@9

Scog@ oco6@ pg> aaJaJo gzorccraalco o2g eS.co@ oelcoa 0g)6@ c^:ooal qlmlEce

ge QOEJ, oocotoc6 qczrrco2rco eoqeoc Q 6rsO6 eB 17 zoO qqcgO ocoEco gr2
61.3,377,769,725 zi'i OOzlczs:@6rr} gaI O5oc^:zo: zocgE@cO gzoJgg €66
OOzrczol@ eJ.(,rO 0o6@ coOozrJ qnloc 6@6.

eo@cogC8zr OSooc*Q o{Eco oocorrcd @gQ colp@ 8g E omc@i6 OOO pg>
gzorcc;?r a2g qzslOc 60*rq o{Eco oocotocd @gQ olp9 oOpoOzrI Edzr, eE
6L.703,099,679 bl oocoolcd qo2rco?r SgfonJ OOr:czo:@ e€ gre€zsJ zo6 6Q&.
d qAO @ C.^, EqOzo:O<r 9@6 1 E 45 oeBqco gzocdO ge> gzo:ro:z:: q8n@
ood OSeecoO gpQSO gQBoaI 6,8@ oc O5rBzs:docs zo€gz:J QOq, o{Eco arc

qcacodzo: ooroalcd @gQ o16O ood O5eecozrlo qpd18O ge, gzoccl:zr e€
oo@qdOzod or:'rc@16 OO dBzslo<rco Ece.

g{o€zs: oeJco?rcd es@co@ eo@o oocoocd o6)oc) <5co oqzl@O gO@cd1

zordoldo@Q qqre copoqpO Ozor@ rBq[@ OSes6zs] a2gQ qoeotrJ zs:d ozrcds@
ouJ4oOzrI EEgoO eoqaral oaccoooi SBOico Oar e.165,000,000 oOpOO pg>
gzoccazrOg 67.34,962,000 zsi 6€O cDr,) 66O oulqoOrf oegccoo@ ge>
gzorco:arOg qmloc 6@gi Ea2€@ 86O1co 6i.130,038,000 z6.i Ol8oco:rl qnlOc

6A€ OO Eoqao<3Q 68mlee€8c.: Eco. aOq, OO EEpg gpO 6,mla ozrrc)
alor: es@cco9o gcog @1ooz:: dcrJEo Qarcomi eoqarzrla:d ozlcdQqj qzld oarccr

alOr: gOcoqa Q-- oees zs'Jee62o zrlOorrl 689 gercEo@:ri og oeeo
qEdcr}Oa Qrr:cozsf eeqozrl zs:d 6@6.

6escc^:6eo oeJcoalrd aarel@ @cecoJgzo Ozl gOEcszo: qgcr:r: @dOg 6d<r qpO
ococ8rrf oon estozlcOcd ogee gOc Q@ eoqalc qc6co2rco 26l€ dosccodzor oeJco?rrd
ozrrcco q@czl> o<dcg qpQdcodrrj oacdo eo@cog EBrrJ gcdzo: oocotoc6
oglzn:@ zorcScocgooi go>nleozood E"^ SMFV2/DAIFS/11 oacg q6at 2O2l
eorejzrr@aS 14 Qzll16 @8co Or8:rl zo€ gC€OrI geo g8coc oocoercd o@.oOc.
l0 zoi q.ozo:cQO,mcalazr}6co go{caoo$ g{o@zo eo@co@zoO gacQ dAG. ezslzl
oocoarrd 6zs.JnJ 68ogQ dE OcGeJ OOzrczo:@ ogeo d1. 900,000 zor pqgmi q"ie:

(o)

(,r)

(o)

(c)

(n,)
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zlirrloqozsl oees eaccDr8oo eo@cco@ zoose ard 6@6 god oo pqg odqoc
66cord rB6ozs:o a(d 689 orlz:2oozrf ge> gzs,roamog oafzs:@ s)c 0g)6@ o@
g@ce6ocoaf qQoonl qzsloc 6@6.

ozoog,@ go{oaoos gdco€zo oesc@rrcd es@co@zoro <6co eqm@ @a ood oSeooo{Q
gacQ 6Qg oocooc6 ooQml oocaf 250 bl eo@cogcEr: o5eooo{Q esgcog oon
zllozl gococozrr 6A€ gad oo6 oSeoorJQ o@ oocoaocdog go@cd1 oornczo:@
d1.7,500,000 ,.l ogos ge> gzoroaaog qnloc dA6. eoocogc8a oSooogQ gqcg
oocoeocd zrrloz:: gDcol8o@Q oocorocd oarccooc.j oozlczor@ dr.6,600,000 z6J

ogeo Q.900,000 6zrJ gQooal E.goor, r,-s6 63@ ouJ4ooal esgcogc8ar
oSeor,i 9e> gzo:roaa:og EzoJg@ 88o1co e.900,000 6zrf oi8ocorrf qmloc
6ae.

@ e.^, Eo<rrl 9@6090 (@.e..E.g) qazb2eo @c Eco<s:rrco gg zsrda gQ. o@o 6o.oar 9@6
c^:oozrJ Q gcocrj oco6@, o@@ ocSr:coo Qg> gzo)rga?r Eo<roco es@OrfoocozrJ Eco<rzoocrj
0o6@ cor:: ozocooei aogdozsl Eeiz::d zord q1a. @cocr} r:rJzrJocco<r2r6 zil€, gzlcs eoqorc
oqz::9nl eoleE9 eoEesc @c E8:rj gOcoo:::: q16 Eo6zl eoczoJ8 g@c<6Oa} eoo 6,Ezr: OO @co(r1'
EcrJOcesceS.

1.3 e,rOcoo@ 2O22 Ot68zo OcbzacoO q.(A€zrJ qoo:zs2d oon64e

o@@ Eo6a OcSr:coO Qr::O ogO @O gOc Q@O Ogcoocodcala2 Oz:: ot@c6,o@ 2022
oo68zs: ocSarcoo Eiagd zs:d q1d z:rgd ge> gzorc,azrj eoto d g@aqo Q oocrJ Eco<6zrr
OcSocoO ftA€ztJ oarcOzl oat6o267, qozrrzqal ozlcda2dl corJozr::rJ qQar6j oO. o@g
qomzs)zrl oacdqdl osqarc zs:g@?rczod6c3 Oa6,O Se(^3.

pgts gzorcoa?5,, es@OzrJOocozrf Q @oal @r:ocozrJ goarzo2n} oncd4e qcOd<6ce ozlczoldrl
qz:rd 9@ e9 8@Aq 689 qczs:cdcozo ee?rdzoE@a'J ooC @arcsnl gzs)cce oelczord@.

pg> gzo:coa:rr 8@aq @ocrJ Eo€6r::coo gqcgo, gocr} 0o6@ ozrJorrJ gara argzoccozrl
qozl4al or:cdr;d1 gOc ozl otd 9 EO 6coE@ eseo Ooe.d 66oOQ gozla2zii oon6s261
9e> gzoroazl eegao osrC Eo<SmocdQ otoC oOnal qczs:cdco6:ri gacoaf goc} qiqO qpO
g @c <6c aI@ zo O sa oco?r.J @zfl c o1e oozl Oc q coaf zl eo e zo3 Ar€ O B.

es@coo@ 2022 ac59zor OcSzacO 6osO2r EO, OE g@c<6caJ@a: OdqOc qlzslOg qi6 OO @O
6c)@2io zs'rg,otoczri, 6o(dq 68@ eoqoc ocetrcr zod:r oc6geOcoal oOa dEl zod1.g
oszridooqzlo 25'r€ gQco. zlO gdOa} 6ordq o2rnzo€ OdqOc qla.lEg 6oD rrr@, egOc

gc<dQg@ O>oaidcoO 154 (6) o>oe.idco gzsrcdo @c EBzrJ 6oc zo3eocdQ a:c$@oElafqoo
esocozr zo:dp gOrl OcSocOO fta€?rJ zs:6p qo.

(r)



66co Oo6el ooUoo@€o
Gp,8u eodsrueq al6Xooarir
NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE

1.4 pgr: gzs:cou: 8@aq 2o€Or:czod6od eoo eJcezlro zodar escbcoOcozrioal 0o60

o@@ pg> gzrrcca?r @ e.^, E.g1OzoOo 9@6090 q2zs)eo 8@ocog 68@ oc eecOcd<6

ogee 9Q6o?rj 68o e,:o o"oc oolc oldQ orlqoozrl q16 Ece toi6 g@c<6coj@zo oscoq>

gzoco:ceedocozrJ oncdO 9e> g2f)rca2r 8@ocog 6800 o16Op 86eo qog)).) Om

qo>rrfod etcgzrrcorl E6aa 66@ zs:g@mczo:d<6ooi 0o6@ oO.

Qg> gzorcoaa 8@ocog 68o@Q, eo9ccl@ qO<dOO oOzrJOcooa coco@ orl6cecO E6acs
68@ zogg:lczs:d6ooi Oco6@nl Ors: qnd, zoggarczo'rc8ziJOc,r es@cco@ qlOd 68O0
qqooi zordrrfoal aro oaoc oomal Ezoglooml ozlc@16 EoQ o@oarsg 2rrol?rJEoo
6Oge zodaJozrf a@ told qO<dO o1O1a{o@ oqo:g @a E.q1@ z116g slc es@coo@

qO<dO o1O1of@O qqcg zordlg qnrcOde6co 66gq zorg,@r:czord<sooi 0o6@6.

ee@coo@ pg> OcSr:cat66 @cocO@co oo@OTJOO o8mJeoc 68o@ Oco6@, ocgzrce zodm
oc5@Oco?tf EBrrI qdp ea8.

2018 q.zo 19 q6a e5cdzo: Eo<64 orrrozrJ 16 (1) 6,o Oo:rl8ce gzorcdO, oegccoog Oc58zo

eoao zs:c@m pg> gzoccarl 8@ocog 68O0 o1160:r oEQ a$O6cs qcqcco@, Ecoq@, OzrJzo:@

toc 01dzs:9 8€Aq 68 oBQ ooca}eal toc Oc5zlc oOoJOcogr2r coc g6JGr.

$gr: gzs:cea Eo<6a-'rcs ee@OrlOoorJ Eo.qzoosJ 0o6@

eo@oizlc^:zsJ oeeo 9er5 gzocsa?r, O"Oc eoto OldQ 6eoc gidOrrr g@c6crJgzor eocOq>

gzocoazrcorfoo?rJ oz:lcd OOO escOc6<5 orcQ61Ozsl gOcQO eso @cocr} gr:co q'14ga}
Eo<6zl OcSr:cO 6a>zrl 669 @cocrJ qd9€5 oD. escOcd<s esodzorEg 6,eeal @OOo@

osardzoE@zsl Oa r::paJ, 6 e.^, Oo6arr 9@6 gzocdO Eo<Eacs 8g 66oOQ Oce

eslOEO@ g@c<6cal@zn: eocOq> gz;rcoamcorf qz::cOd6co zodcozrJzlc OOO Oa z:leoQdl

66@20l oacOp glzr:. O"Oc eoo OldQ r:6 ooJ eocp8zor ogeo Ogol@ 6esc A9c6cnl@zo:
escOq> gzocoaarcozsf q.i68co a1E qa6, OE g@c6co}@a tlrcOco o@@ Sg> g?oroa2r)

oqar@ zs:do6@zrl es8<Sgzorcorrl EBzrJ orp gOar qc5€r.,t E6a ozr':odE Oa Ogol@ @n

6qc esOE.

6 e"^, Eo<5zrr 9@6 gzo:cdO Eo<6aooj ozo:cOeszsl ogeo @c E8:rf Eo<rzs:oo$Q

aar,JE:o EdaJOco esar OazrJ8cs eolzo:ppOE.J gAO @coc zodrrr e q. O, 08rrf aOgdOal,

92oc@ zo:dzl gq Dcr€6zti @r:coO oqar@zol eooco3 ol8o@Q O.Oc ooi OldQ otrJr2oOzrl
pg> gzocoarrrOg qd Ece o16 g@c<6colOzo: eocOq> gzo'rco:a-rcsrf qdEo@ qOqczrr@

orgzaccoldO oc arzoloajdl 68@ esqarc gOodOcoOJEzlO 6,Eor 8co<fzl o8ocO esretE@

zsrd @ceczsf@zo: zoda gQ. odqoc qlzslE@ orJr)oozrf Egoa g@c6czrlozs: eocoq>

gzorcoacoaloozri EgOa AeotOO OCc O"OcOdrrf SgOurla:c Q Ogolg gOg Orrlozrl egOc

godeordocaocozrl, o>cd ogloz:: eelzo:8o@zrl, oozlacalEzl gelrsrr8oozl}, odqoc
qlzslEo@af otoC qo>rrfzld ocga:coal @eo ar18o@af 016 ouJq Eeoc Oz:..r ftE6.
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qto)S?tfztd $ce2tooi eedgqcSzilOce 8@AqO @z:loszsl gzocce 68o0 gqo8rrJ ozs:cQOq,

qOeddcoOJOz::O 6,021 Eo€62r oBocO eoiegg 689 86os qto>afr:d ore?rco 8@AqO

qOoOJOcozsi gOccoafzlc gQ.

trcEzrc zordzo gq rB.5Ozod<r g6ooi6Og 6,EzltocOco, 65Ozs:dar qeJotogola2Og
eecOcd6aJO6 eoto zr':g@aczod<rco E8zrl zo:d:r gq eegOrr}Erl oeo@qdO 68@ qcoc.:ar

eq.

8Ct?rJ ooC azrJzrJOcerrJ ouJa2oOal eo@ccoo@ qOcdO olOlafg 8€Aq g@c<5cal@zsr

g8dcJ8nzlcOcozoi 6oDq cerJar eogOrrJOoc^:rrf gOcolzrl Esx62r escmJ8 @r: oqa@O

ESOzo:Occo eoE?Dr qccozlz:'roc.l qO<dO o1O1aI@ 8€Aq esqa:9 ococqr colEo9 gqcgalOco

E6aa zo:da gQ. gOc<6OaI qEdcrJEazsrcOc^:zs'l q16 OOO 9c 6o19?16 zordzrJozrl m@

pg> gzorcozlOg e5 es@OzrJOoc^:zri Q oto@q6O66@ OgO gcocr} Eco<6ar OcSarcoO

qOOcaco ococQ 2og g6J gad, O@ oo@qdO669 gOr<6Or"J orlcOrrloal z:"r9 @cocrJ

@r:co Ezod<6co zo€, geca. ozoroai QOq, qzs:coa 8{8rl ooC z::zrJzlJOc^:zrf @zrr qO<dO

eslOlzrJ9 qOeezrl EOO ao16cs.

pg> gzorccazlOg Opoco toc qzrfzl5ozslce eoEtoc ocqzo I orAoEE toc 8{Errf 6,Ez:: roc

escOcd<6O greeziJ E qrd OO eso oor@qdO 68O qlb2gd 9e, gzo:coar:Og es@oir:

gQ8oai 68@ qocoa 6Q.

pg> gzorcoar:: 8@aq 9r:cezsl gzocoa 68@ eeqtoc a:@co@ e€ grd qc66)zs: otof O>cocd

@coczs:cdzogOe 9e> oac6o261 es@OaJOoc,srlJ g@c<6OrJ ggg Eo<64 eoczo'i8 gOc

cozrfz:':c eQ. esgo Eo<rzlooi o@otocsE@, qEa'Io<rco eso zorcScs escOaco eoqoc 9c OaSO
gzi;ce.@occJ Eoe6rl Oa:o eoqoc @9 eo9gScocezrJ9 OaSO g6JCo.

@cocrJ Eo€5?rco z2gQ aogzrrcorf Olqoal Eo6rrr o€occoc(Dr6@, gOcrrr qto>zrfr:d ore?t)

gSOgac alc qoozo'2af zodr€ 8@AqO oceztq3 zodp gOa escScaOcor'J ETAOTJ zod@.

oOazrJ ooadzs, aoc EocO:lr qOo>zsrc 8€'ae Oc6arcO

2018 q.zo: 19 q6a dcdzr: Eo6?t omoal eoat 2007 g"zr',':7 q6rr: ee@cco@ o:rrozlj ooar

eoqtorri gOco>r:cOcozrf es@OrrlOocozrJ EoaJo gdocqar qlqgal oO.

2.1.1 gcocr} OcSr:coO araJafOcg)€6ztco zo€, @arco eoqarc oqzrr@ ozocOoaj Eajzs:d zsrd qd zsrdr€

o€zrJ oo Ogol@ a76,2007 g"a 7 qdo eo@co@ ozr:oal 163 (2) oo?rJdooi eeo 2018

g"zs: 19 qdm e5cdzsr Eco6zl ozloal 12 (q) Oor:J6oc,i esqtozlf qOoa>ncOrrf qAO,
Eo6mco eeqoc qOoa> Eceg oacdo2dl as:o oralrQ€ 68@ @c E8zrf gOcozrfmc gq qz::d,

@cocrJ o8zo'lesgocorf ood con qczorcdcsO 68 pg> OcSr:c es@co@ a:OoJOcooar oocaj
6a6.

2.1.2 2018 q"zo 19 q6m e3cdzo Eo6zr eszs:oal 6 (1) (qt) (iii) ocoaldood eoqarzrJ qooa>zrcoco

qpO eo@cco"@ 9e, gzocoe2t gAaJ OSeeco esOeo qpdlo oO.

2.I.3 2018 q"zsr 19 qdnr e$Er,: Eco<6:rr oaozrJ 6 (1) (qr) (iv) Oonfdoo3 eeqtorrl qOoer:ocOco

qpO gcocrf OcSr:coO nnJaJOcsr€6ztco zo€ @zlco eoqar uqar@ ozocOoe,i (d),(O),(O)

2.
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=-ffi-mmcsOoal qzslOc q16 EBzsIo<6 eold gzs';a} OSeooc$Q @c E8zrl Sgzs:da gq 65o{ceco:rf
gQBoaJ zodzr gq Sg> gzo:coazrroe q-.b2€afO q1ar.

2.2 qQogoco zo:dm gq @cecOc 6a eaa gOc arrdac gq eeczsl8 gzl toc A@c<6czri@zo:
zodl$OgO 8@c 68@ eg, erto?, eeqarrf gzorc? 6800 r:6@ 68OzsJ gcocrj qOOcarceO

6mi oarc8ce.

2.2.1 2018 q"zs: 19 qdo dcdzo Eco<rzl oaorJ 12 (ql) ocrrrr}doqJ eoqaraf qoca>ococe qpo
ee@coo9 ore2o 9<dOgoo$ c,s@ eec@c8zs:ocozs'2O es@csr@ esgOzrfOE co@ rBEggnl
ee@OzrfOocozrJ eeagfO ooC gtrr>czo:cdcodzrJ escgc2m O>cuc6zsr r:aJOocozrJ a,1er,16a

es@OzrlOcoml q16 aO.

2.2.2 2018 q.zo i9 qdrrr eic6-rl, Eco6zr oooaj 12 (6) Oco:rJEooi eeqto:rf qOca>arcOco q6O
otr:n oeqozrf 66zsles<6 told cs9 gqcg @5a EdcozsrO oaoC esgccoo@ ocezo @dOgc;
EBzrI6zqai a:dzl gq oozlzrJ oocg oarC EocJee Eoczrogo qtree oacozl ogeo @coc
zo:d ep16 OO.

AESA oc odc2gc8 060 ococpO q2ee oarc8@

(q) 2021 or.nOrga5 16 Qm16 toc<dOcocd

oglzor@ocr} q"at 0ll202l q6a 6xfn
O>cocd OgoglOco eoger 6zr2rJ zodrrr

e q o@otog@ gofoocoaE 6.6
OoolEcs

(qr) 2021 oonOr@a6 16 Qzs:16 src€dOcocd

oglzo@ocri q.at 0ll202l qdz:: dceJ>

O>cescd OgoglOco eo@el 6zs2ai zordzrr

eq o@orog@ qafoocoaE 6.6
Oazs{'Eco

E€O OSoco qOeerrJ E Qzsr 60 ml qlqga eo1@

6tebs ee@cco@ml@ 9er gzb:co:?r 8@ocsg
ozorcO Eco<6zoc8od oOr: gQ8orlzog g4
}Alst,202112022 OSeeoci pg> gr:ccazr E6O
OSeeco qOeozrl 0 Q- 44781 cozl8o@zsJ egO
Eoozo:ctesd oOa gQBoalzs:d 606.

6€O O5eeco gOeezrl O gces 05zoi eke€zt
eo@coo@ Oc58zo OcSrlcO oc5@o@rrfa2oD

eoocsrzr zog gq Qoq202ll2022 OSood pg>
gz6rcsa2r Eo<rzorcEod oOn gQ6oaJ68O

Esr&zr Q-- OarEOzrJ oc5@o@zrfa2oD

es?.Dcozr2Dd ozlcdQ6.

2.2.3 2018 q"zs: 19 qdz:: eitEr;, Eo<5zrr ozlozrJ 12 (d OozrJdooi eoqeozrf gOoa>acOco gpO
eo9coo@ Oeoe , zo:5aO> esto zocSceco.Jo qpee omcOul ogeo zs,Ogq zsrd q16 OO.

2.2.4 2018 q"zsr 19 q6a eic6,r;, Ecl{62t or:ozsJ 12 (6,c) Osr6'J6ocd eeqaraf qOoa>acOco gpO
eseoz:: eoqtozrJ 68zs'lo<f arld eo9ccoo@ eogooJ eozolpdlOg o6eo, acSc^:nlo@ oees eo?Jl

dgqcS ogeo a:cg8@cozrJ e€ qqc€ aaga oeo q€ego goe@ocq:::c.: zo:d ocEzrczod
q16 ao.

(q) o>oeec6 ee@oal eolep@zs:d<E o{odco (ERP System) eJdcSa 68@ eoqoc
ee@co@ E82tJ 2017 OSeoooi 8O 4. 36,514,026 zo S8Olcoa'l eoc qceozrfzr: Ooeoco?rJ

dr.1,385,639 mI Oz:: Oc58zo: oaiOc r:Oajq 86O1cozsl qd2r eq zr,gd ezolo
o{cdco es@coo@ ee@oizr <86ozoo<r @c.:co@c.:@ qcod<Eco ozl oBQ ircEr)coo
ocrzt o?t0606. zaOq eJocSzlo oOdzo o{AdzrI sazs}6@zrJ escgrrc.:zrfoozrf
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(qr)

ozlcdO @coca}@zs: E@ orla2oOtrf, qdzr, eq 6,mlza Cdcorrrco 68o@ 8BO1co aoc

OcSEzoO qdp gOzl zlOnlr2 S6Oioco:ri qoeCnlEzl g6de gOc o116@0 ee9cco9

qoecotoresrf E 646.

@ar01@ qEzoc6co, oocEeJzt es.OSOm oqocbr:o@zrJeO, 6AU es"OSOzr

oqocSzs:o@zrJrJO, g@6ce oqescSr:o@zrfqO Ord ddoci qccorlzrr OeO q6?rJ

ococOzrlrB@Og 8E0 coOOc es@coo@ o@otogg 6Oga2 eoq?rc ocorqccop gO:l
qzld eSOc Eep6nloocO, qzs;d.a$eo, @coogl, zo2Qc61og, pOdd@co, zortcoCe,

@1qOOEco, zo;QEO,oqcOzrloo:cO, 9qar9, ozorccrlog toc EdEg csz:: go{cracorr}E

oOaJOcocozl c6E eroD. Og gco{Ece oerrorrod srOOcO?rJE Erl>cgzs;g
8@zoc6aJOcs gOc 416@ oeoJ zoglOg EEEOczl o1to1Q@O ?rgtrrr col8@ml ooJ

6,zslz:l coOOcOg OOrlczo:9 o{og 8Bc^:a 6,esr,t6<5 csOozll rrsl2rc co16@ml Egzod

oac916 OO 68n}eo<rce Ecs.

(q1) 9coo6l Qd$zolzoco r2g gzo'loocorocd oOOcO oioc8zl zs:d q16 Oc8cooocg Ozrlz::

ar1@16 a5. 29.93 zsi OoeeBce esEzl gO@, gOO gdeo"edzn:de6 ozoc@eerJ eetlrcO

08?rJ 2020 eordzrr@aS 10 Qa es@cco@ oOzsr OeigOzot O8zrl6r:>cpzqgO oOdcQ

E(ztb} O@ gOO zlzolooddlzr:d E$@coz:: omc68@ oulr2oOaf pg> gzocoa2ti e€
e5.(o@ o?rrozr OnJzs:9 qOr:zsloa{d1 E 646.

(.t) 2019 e3afit6 31 Qr::16 qO>nfo gdOg o$zo:c q"a 265119/01 gzo:cdO oE etQ
2019 @fio2 29 Qa76 g.at 2472 qda qo>mleo @<dog E6aa oE2rI ee@ccl@

€o6J 6Od0@co slc oerco€)zrlm61O 6OcQ 6ozo'Jr:a oOrrJ 68o@Q gcozorgga2

cocadzs; es@OzrJOocozrJ dcrJEaO qzoloc 6@6. O@ 6,ooqeJ OgO ooeo(6o cocodo2

eo9ccoo@rrf oBOctBd dgOc8rrfO toc @Qzrfocr} ogoC esc@c8zo:8zrJ esqocE EOcQ

6ozn'lz::zlco orrrc@ogl gOcQ@ oulz:2oOrrf d1.339,000 zo: gglctoconl alc g1b1@

g{ogcorrf oOar ozlc@ogl qctocdoc2i e,31o89 oOgoOzrl Q.89,696 zs: 86O1conl

q6c 6Q6. aOq, 0016 qOadOcOzrf OgQ gSoocorll qzddzorcd@ ocrOc 89zo6 6Q
oOrr} 689 qOg,.c2a6 6Q qr:d grrJ qE@ Q qcqcco@ 61.172,500 E.

(e) 6eocc,:6zsr oocotoc6 Errtco?tco zlcorl@ 68o@zrJ esg deSooi oocotocd gdozdd

$c^:ca}@zr: 6690 es9co@O o6esd Ezlzo:c@ oocorocd @6Q o16o@ olOeoOorl

OpogfOo O62tJ gco{rBcs oOOc oOdrrf oe:cotocd eslog@zodlOzrf

@cocoQ"EozorcO oozl gQaloozri zocOdzo oescorocd @gQ co16@O gOa{dcO

ooeeoc q 60e. doa$ @gQ o6'J ooco?ocd g9c<6coz:"1 grlc gQ EgocOc^:6zrJ qoe E

Ozr OOaI, 2023 @cbq 31 Qzs'r Ozr EO 61.7,510,800 nl 86O1co Q oescorocd

o@.oOcrrf 315.28 zs'J arc Eo<rerrcs oOzl O8rrrczor@ gQ6oa} o?rczo€, oocotocd

og.oOcrrJ 586.86 26) g@c<6cozol Eoe8 oncE pggS0co gOca oOOc eoto

gco{Ecs cr:OCcO:rJ 4g oooO oeoc q16 aOaJ 682olo6ce Ecs.
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(6) es@co@ aso2a 2023 @c6zs2 31 Qn Om EO o@.oOcrJ 56 zo: zogl 9ADJ I deecco8zs)

oescoglcd oaccocozo'l oc o@.oOcrl 26.7 a qr@gg oocotocd g@c<6cemi olOd
qzld o@@ oeJcotocd g9c<6ce gotod<5cs ee@O:rJOocsal ee@co@ E82tl 68
qogEzsrd<6 eolglod@ml @cocaf@zo zod omc6@&.

2.3 oOrrzrJ zodr€

ee@cco@ EBzrJ deJoo$ oqocSao9zrJa: toc qrco?r?r), oorc8eJm oajOc @O>adc)car,

EoeA docoCSncezrJ eso oOqcto8zrlzrlzrl oOa <6co oqm@ 9o oocotocd EenJ
68O oa}4oOzrI ee@cs)@O qco8co gAO oOda ocrJeecozrJE 9d OOarczsrO

Q.1,530,184,011 zsl Oa gzrrd dt8 ftAgrf ocrJecozrJ es@OzlJOoc^:zrf Q Eco<6:l

66nJee6coof oozl oBQ oO.

(D 6co erqtl@ gzsr oocoarcd gOcQ@ oOpoOrr} Oeod 10 zs: 8O eslOa dzl
e5arnc Oq ee"OSOzl @<dOgocorrf toc dce5> O10@ es"aidcoOrf S€oO€zrJ

61.37,993,346 zo pqgzo} ac Q.35,931,679 a gqezol ee9cs)@O qco8co g4
gO6J O@ osJeecorrf gcezod o16@0 os@ccr@ qoe3roErceoztJ E q16 qnd
oJOcOd OaJzo@nl es@ccoO oOzl oOdc o1E@O OBztJ Od qqr€ qccoz:larc^::rJ

eeOco dzoeraJOcoaJO o1@<6 q"1aal e9Oc dgqc8 oeeo @coca}@zo O

oac916 AOztJ 682olec€6co E6.

(iD olg|Oz:fz:r Ed e,s9ccDo@ OSeo 03 gml@Q dr.807,650n} eoc aDOcopO E

o6ooiee<6 toc es"O6O?tr qc6a?toc,J O5eeco gztlOg ft.120,5002il 6co
onJe gcozo:d co16oo EoGa Qrl oa EOaJ ee@ccog goocoeoceozrJ E q1E

OO 68zo'lodco Ece.

(iii) es@co@ oOor oe@cogJ8o: Obesco qOeoczl Q:l Oa EO ococEeJn oaiOc

@C>adOczrr 346 bl oOdr} qcsEcs SA 9d OOz:rczs:@ Q.1,385,011,522 bl
Orrr qn6 q6l 67.490,99.0,037 mI Obe 01 8O OSes 05 qzslOc zorcg

odcescozs'r oOdzl <5co osjo Oo ESzo'Jo6c^: Eco.

(iv) qoe8 docoCSzlcezrJ oOr: es@csl@ 08rd qcs oqzl@ @a 6zo2aI zsrdrrl gq

oocotocd o?rc(, eoqoc aOgdOnJ qcoEco gr2O oOdzr OUea 04 8O OUes 10

qzs'lOc zsrc6 odceocozol 4gQ Ozoe OOzlczor9 67.13,239,202 bl AA

68nJeo<rco Ec^:.

(v) eeOccoo@ 8O oocOeJzrroaiOc @O>aidca oOn oocoorcd oOqco8zrJzlzrJ

oOdzrJ e,s@ccr9O qce8ce ga2O oOdrr: OSes 04 zor zs:cgcenl gml@Q <5co

ocr}ocozrlE Ozr:e OOzrrczo:@ 67.44,941,885 zrl aO Eo<raodQ
68zoleo<rco Eco.
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(.E\'LON FERTILIZER COMPANY LIMITED

:TATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

IOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 N{ARCH Note 2022 2021

\\SE'I'S
\on-Current Asscts
::rperty, Plant and EquiPment

- :prtal Work-in-Progress
-::ngible Assets

T,rlal Non-Current Assets

t urrent Assets

:" entories

.:de and Other Receivables

::-:ployees Loans and Advances

.:i estments in Government Securities

-'. eslments in Fixed DePosits

- ,sh and Cash Equivalents

lotal Current Asscts

T otal Assets

IQT'ITY AND LIABILITIES
tquit-v
:::ted Capital
: :r aluation Reserve

: :'tained Barnings

Total Equity

\ on-Cu rrcnt Liabilities
:.3rrrement Benefits Obligation

-':fened Taxation
.lerest Bearing Bonowings

Total Non-Current Liabilities

r- urrent Liabilities
::de and Other Payables

-:.rest Bearing Bonowings
,tposits and Advances Received
-;onre Tax Payables
..-';rued Expenses and Provisions

::rk Overdrafls

T,rtal Current Liabilities
trotal Equity and Liabilities
\et Asset Value Per Share

ll
12

13

2,632,653,373 2,66s,990,r05
676,729

4,978,638
676;729

9,s60,79't

t4
15

16

t7
18

l9

2,638,308,740 2,676,227,631

94.985,181 388,'120,934

28,453,931,827 25,672,027,321

35,470,521 39,171,276

807.101,718 730,446,740
2,523,866,395 2,396,023,005

2e7,704,951 __ t2!_,03!2 _
32,213,060,606 29,422,424,223

34.851.369,347 32,098,651,854

502,456,080 502,456,080

2,318,306,7'75 2,31'1,365,710

3.569.463,352 3,526,156,689
6,390,226,)07 6,345,918,479

73,914,153 79,731,435

100,894,788 139,082,220

13.451.229,712 15,991,700,302

13,626,038,653 16,210,513,957

20

2t

22

23

25

24

25

26
aa

28

19

2,963,540,581
1 1,768,854,035

17,949,514
2 1.0 1 9,056

63,741,302

5,'170,919,966

3,666,228,769
22,058,923
4,345,255

78,201,983
404.521

14,835,104,487 9,512,159,417

127.t8

Financial Statements of the Company compty with the requirements of the Companies Act No. 0'1 of 2007

The Board ofDirectors is Responsible for Preparation and Presentation ofthese Financial Statements.

Approved and Signed for and on behalf of the

.. 
r 2.06.2023

,nrlto,

' :ures in brackets indicatc deductions.

.:.irotheFinancialstatemcltsonPages5to24formanintegralPartofthcscl'inancialstatements.

)

Director



ON FERTILIZER COMPANY LIMITED
E}IENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTI{ER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Pagc I

(Exptessed in Sri Lankur Rupees)

TIIE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCII Note 2022 202'.|

Iof Sales

r Profit

r Operating Income

inistrative Expenses

mtional Expenses

E from Operation

nce Income

nce cost

fit Before Taxation

rre Tax Expenses

Et for the Year

bcr Comprehensive Income

\cturial Gain/Loss on Obligation

Defened Tax Benefits / (Expenses) on Acturial Gain/Loss on Obligation

*ferred Tax Benefits / (Expenses) on Revaluation Surplus

al Other Comprehensive Income

ol Comprehensive Income for the Year

1,209,392,948 2,257,657,78r

(868,94s,417) (1,841,5r6,753)

340,447,531 416,141,028

5

6

7

104,584,039

(533,6 l 5,098)

(151,485)

l I 8,465,56 1

(562,562;171)

(907,040)

(88,735,013) (28,863,222)

181,995,015 212,531,507

(27,911,393) (2r,077,869)

65,348,609 162,590,416

16,22't,3r1 (38,197,672)

81,575,919 124,392,743

941,06s

(7,9ss,528)

1,909,327

20,082,985

941,065 14,036,',l84

82,516,985 138,429,527

b- Earnings Per Share (EPS)

hilcnds Per Share (DPS)

l0.l

t0.2

2.48

0.37

r.62

0.24

r brackcts indicate deductions.

he Financial Statements on Pages 5 to 24 form an integral part of these l'inancial Statements.

I

1

4

8

8
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CEYLON FERTILIZER CO]\IPANY LIMITED
STAI'EMENT OF CIIANGES IN EQUITY

FOR TI{E YIIAR ENDED 31 MARCII 2022

in Sri Lankon

Statcd
Capital

Balance as at 01 April 2020

Prior Year Adjustments

Profit for the Year

Other Comprehensive Inconte (Note No I )

Balance as at 3l March 2021

Prior Year Adlustments

Dividend Paid

Profit for the Year

Other Comprehensive Income

Balance as at 3l March 2022

Figures in brackets indicate deductions.

Notes to the Financial statements on Pages 5 ao 24 form an integral part of these Financial statements.

Revaluation
Resen'e

Total

20,082,985

66,306,262

124,392,743

14,u6,;s4

502,456,080 2,317,365,710 3,526'156,689 6'345,978,479

- (8,871,274) (8,871,274)

- (2s,3s7,s83) (2s,3g7,;83)

941,065

81,575,9r9 81,575,919

- 941,065

502,456,080 2,318,306,775 3,569,463,352 _ i'39!22!20J_

Retained
Earnings

66,306,262

124,392,743

(6,046,201)



LO\ FERTILIZER COMPANY LIMITED
{TE\IENT OF CASH FLOWS

IHE YEAR ENDED 3I MARCII
Note

Flou,s from Operating Activities

r Before Taxation

for;
. rllLlll

zation of Intangible Assets

:l: r Loss on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment

ity Charge for the Year

lncome

: l:rpcnses
'r crrr Adiustments

atirrg l,oss Before Working Capital Changes

ltf \

.rrrtl ( )tlrcr I(cccivables

'r ccs l,oans and Advances

rrrd Otlrcr l)ayables

s and Advances Received

uued Expenses and Provisions

Florv from Operations

' Paid

Paid

Paid

Cash Flow from / (used in) Operating Activities

Florvs from Investing Activities

ition of Property, Plant and Equipment

isition of Intangible Assets

from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment

investments (With Interest Re-investment) in Treasury Bills / Fixed Deposits

Received (Net of Taxes)

Cash Flow from / (used in) Investing Activities

Flows from Financing Activities

ngs During the Year

idend Paid

ts of Borrowings During the Year

Cash Flow from / (used in) Financing Activities

Changes in Cash and Cash Equivalents During the Year

and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of the Year

and Cash Equivalents at End of the Year (Note 19)

in brackcts indicate deductions.

Page 4

(F-xpressed in Sri Lankan Rupees)

2022

65,348,609

4 r,088,023

4,582,159

3,41 8, 199

(181,995,015)

27 ,911,393
(8,87r,274)

2021

162,590,416

53, r 10,34 r

4,517,354

(90,0 1 4)

11,211,931

(212,s31,s07)

21,077,869

66,306,262

(48,517,906) 106,212,653

293,73s,7 53

(2,78 1,904,506)

3,700,7 55

(2,807,379,436)

(4, l 09,409)

( 14,460,68 1 )

(162,727,177)

(6,869,372,218)

1,559,366

1,076,317,452

(22,399,534)

(497,337)

(5,358,935,430) (5,870,906,795)

(9,23s,432)

(27,911,393)

(4,345,2ss)

(5,400,427,510) (5,899,813,904)

('7,829,240)

(21,077,8_69)

(7,751,291-)

(204,498,368)

l 8 1,995,01 5

(13,62s,89r)

(324,025)

282,122

( 161 ,078,490)

212,531,507

(30,254,644) 37,785,222

8,391,084,309 lt,437,869,814

(29.397.983)

(2,828,929,633) (5,883,423,698)

5,532,756,693 5,554,446,1 l5

102,074,539

195,630,426

(307,582,566)

503,212,993

lo thc Financial Statemcnts on Pages 5 to 24 form an integral part ofthcse Financial Statements.

297,704,965 795,630,427

ffi
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CEYLON FERTILIZER COMPANY LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCTAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

GENERAL POLICIES

Reporting entity

Ceylon Fertilizer Company is a fully government owned, ISO 900 l:2008 Certified Company coming under purview

of the Ministry of Agriculture operating for more than 50 years in Sri Lanka. Ceylon Fertilizer Company is engaged

in importation of chemical fertilizer, producing quality fertilizer mixture and marketing, distributing through island

wide network of warehouses and thereby catering to the fertilizer needs of Sri Lankan Farmers.

Ceylon Fertilizer Corporation was converted to Ceylon fertilizer Company Ltd in terms of the transformation of
Government Corporations and Govemment owned business undertaking into limited liability companies under the

act No. 23 of 1987.

This Conversion took legal effect from l5th September 1992. The Ceylon Fertilizer Company Ltd presently

operates as a Registered Public Company in Sri Lanka under the Companies Act No. 1 of 2007. The objective of the

Ceylon Fertilizer Company Ltd is to ensure carrying out the successful business undertaken by its predecessor

Ceylon Fertilizer Corporation which was established under the provisions of the State lndustrial Companies Act
Number 49 of 1951

1.2 FINANCIAL YEAR
The Company's financial reporting period ends on 3 I st March.

l.l

1.3 Share Capital of the Company

The company is fully owned by the Sri

shares ofrupees 10 each.

Lanka Treasury and the issued share capital is 50,245,608 ordinary

1.4

1.5

1.6

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
The number of employees of the company as at 31 March 2022was354 (2021- 362)

DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR TSSUE TS 3I.t MATCh 2023.

Legal Nature and Address ofthe registered office

A limited liability company incorporated in Sri Lanka with full ownership vested with the Secretary to the

Ministry of Finance. The Head office is situated at Lakpohora SwarnaJayanthi Mawatha, Hunupitiya, Wattala,

Sri Lanka.

Principal Activities and Nature of operation

The Company will successfully and continuously provide fertilizer to the nation through bisland wide distribution

network, ivhich contributed significantl)i to the economic development and growth of the company. It is also

considered to be the first State Organization to produce and distribute organic pellet fertilizer to the local

market.

1.7



Notes to the Financial Statements Continued

CEYLON FERTILIZER COMPANY LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3I MARCH 2022

Statement of Compliance

1.8 Going Concern

The Management has made an assessment of its ability to continue as a going concern and is satisfied that it
resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, the management is not aware
material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the company's ability to continue as a going
Therefore, the financial statement ofthe company continues to be prepared on a going concern basis.

1.9 Taxation

Provision for taxation has been made on the basis of profit for the year as adjusted for taxation
accordance with the Inland Revenue Act No l0 of 20 l6 and the new Inland Revenue Act No 24 of 2017 .

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Preparation
(a) Statement of Compliance

The financial statements comprise the statement of financial position, statement of comprehensive income,
of changes in equity, cash flow statement and notes to the financial statements.

(b) Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except where appropriate disclosures are
with regard to fair value under relevant notes.

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Sri Lanka
Standards (SLFRSs). The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost conventi
modified by the revaluation of land and buildings. The preparation of financial statements, in conformity
Sri Lanka Accounting Standards (SLFRSs), requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It
requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Company's accounting pol
The areas involving a higher degree ofjudgmerit or complexity, or areas where assumptions and esti
significant to the financial statements are disclosed in note 2.26.

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on the historical cost basis except
following items in the statement of financial position:

o liability of defined benefit obligation is recognized as the present value of the defined
obligation

o Freehold land and buildings are measured at cost at the time of acquisition and subsequent
revalued amounts, which are the fair values at the date of revaluation

The Financial Statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost convention
for the land, buildings, investment properties and financial assets at fair value through Other Comprehensive

lncome Presentation and Functional Currency The
the Companies functional and presentation currency,
Company operates.

Financial Statements are presented in Sri Lankan Ru
which is the primary economic environment in which

Each material class of similar items is presented cumulatively in the Financial Statements. Items of dissi
nature or function are presented separately unless they are immaterial as permitted by the Srilanka
Standard- SLFRSs on 'Presentation of Financial Statements'. The significant accounting policies are di
with relevant individual notes.

2.1
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CEYLON FERTILIZER COMPANY LTD
\OTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3I MARCH 2022

Com parative information
Ctmparative information including quantitative, narrative and descriptive infbrmation is disclosed in respect of the

pr.rin6 period for all amounts repofied in the financial statements in order to enhance the understanding of the

financial statements of the current period and to improve the inter-period comparability.

The presentation and classification of the Financial Statements of the previous years have been amended, where

relevant for better presentation and to be comparable with those of the current year.

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial

statements and in reporting the Public Sector Accounting Standards volumes I, II and III issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka.

It is also disclosed that when the presentation or classification of items in the financial statements have been

amended, comparative amounts have also been reclassified to conform with the current in order to provide a better

presentation. Hence Fixed Assets, Current Assets and Equity classification errors have been corrected as per

SLPSAS and Treasury guide lines.

The presentation and classification of the Financial Statements of the previous years have been amended, where

relevant for better presentation and to be comparable with those of the current year'

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Summary of significant accounting policies have been disclosed along with the relevant individual notes in the

.ubsequent pug"i. Thor" accounting policies presented with each note have been applied consistently by the cornpany'

other significant accounting policiei not covered with individual notes. Following accounting policies which have been

rpplied ionsistently Uy comliny, is considered to be significant but are not covered in any other sections'

Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in Statement of Financial Position based on current/non-current

classification. An asset is cttrrent when it is;

\' expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in ngrmal operating cycle

\' held primarily' for the purpose of trading
\'expected to be realized within twelve months afterthe reporting period, or

\' .urt., or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months

efter the reporting period All other assets are classified as non-current.

.{ liability is considered as current when:

\' it is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

\' it is hetd primarily for the purpose of trading

\' it is due to be settled within twelvemonths after the reporting period, or
y there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting

period.
The company classifles all other liabilities as non-current'

Deferred taxassets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities accordingly

Changes in Accounting Policies
The ci'anges in accouniing policies set out below have been applied consistently to the periods presented in the

financial statements, unless otherwise indicated.

The presentation and classification of the financial statements of the previous year have been amended. where

relevant, for better presentation and to be comparable with those of the current year'

I

1','

/ffi\



CEYLON FERTILIZER COMPANY LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3I MARCH 2022

@lnr

I

The accounting
statements and I

ofSri Lanka.
It is also disclosed that when the presentation or classification of items in the

, policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these fin{
in reporting the Accounting Standards as per SLAS issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accou{

financial statements have been aml
to provide a better presentation. I
The current year financial statement I

2.3 Foreign Currency Translation I
2,3.1 Functional and Presentation Currency I

Transaction and balances included in the financial statements of the Company are measured uslng the curl
of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates. The financial statements are presented I
Lanka Rupees (LKR), which is the company's presentation currency' 

I
2,3.2 Transactions and Balances I

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional culrency using the exchange rates prevailll|

the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of I
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denomitl

in foreign currencies are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income. 
I

;H*l:a, 
differences related to changes in amortized cost are recognized in the statement of comRrehenl

Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the Financial Statements the company require themanagement to make judgments, estin

and assumptions, Notes to the Financial Statements which may affect the amounts of income, expendi

assets, liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Uncertainty ai

these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrl

amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. ln the process of applying the company's accoutil

policies, management has made various judgments. Those which management has assessed,to have the n

significant effe-ct on the amounts recognized .in the Consolidated Financial Statements have been discusse

the individual notes of the related financial statement line items'
'l'he key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting d

that have a significant risk of iausing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabili

within the neit financial year, are also described in the individual notes to the Financial Statements. '

company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the Financial Statements^v

pr"p..i. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change du{

*uik.t changes oi circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflect{

the assumptions when theY occur.

2.4 ASSETS AND BASIS OF THEIR VALUATION

2.4.1 Property, Plant and Equipment

(a) Recognition and Measurement
Items*of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost or at their fair value less accumulat

depreciation or impairment losses.

The ownership of premises where the Company head office is located was vested with the Company

a Cabinet decision as a presidential directive was issued in the year 2009. However, although the dee

were received, the process of registeringthe ownership of the premises with the Land Corrmissioner

the Kelaniya and wattala divisional secretariats is currently under process. The registration of t

kelaniya divisional secretariat deed registration is done but no sooner the registration of the watta

secretariat is done the Company will be claiming the compensation value of rupees 12.6 Million frc

the Road Development Authority for acquiring i8 perch of tand for expansion of the transport syst/

ofthe country.
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CEYLON FERTILIZER COMPANY LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

I

t

{

2.4.2

The Ceylon Fertilizer Company considers the minimum value of fixed assets as mpees 5,000, all items
of properfy, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation or
impairment losses. Significant components of an asset are identified and depreciated separately. When
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the entity
derecognizes the replaced part, and recognizes the new part with its own useful life and depreciation.

Property, plant and equipment are initially recognized at cost including any costs directly attributable to
bringing the assets to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by the Company's management.

All the item of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Where items of property,
plant and equipment are subsequently revalued, the entire class ofsuch assets is revalued. Revaluations
are made with sufficient regularity to ensure that their carrying amounts do not differ materially from
their fair values at the reporting date.

Any revaluation increases arising on the revaluation of such Assets are recognized in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation.

Decrease for the same asset previously recognized in the income statement, in which case the increase
is credited to the income statement to the extent of the decrease previously expensed. A decrease in the
Canying amount arising on a revaluation of Assets are recognized in the income statement to the extent
that it exceeds the balance, if any, held in the property's revaluation reserye relating to a Previous
revaluation of the same Assets.

Upon disposal, any related revaluation reserve is transferred from the revaluation reserve to retained
Earnings and is not taken into account in arriving at the gain or loss on disposal. The details of
revaluation of Assets are disclosed in note I I to the financial statements

All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in the income statement as incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are initially recognized at cost including any costs directly attributable to
bringing the assets to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by the Company's management.

All the item of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Where items of property, plant and
equipment are subsequently revalued, the entire class of such assets is revalued. Revaluations are made with
sufficient regularity to ensure that their carrying amounts do not differ materially from their fair values at the
reporting date.

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of such Assets are recognized in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation.

Decrease for the same asset previously recognized in the income statement, in which case the increase is
Credited to the income statement to the extent of the decrease previously expensed. A decrease in the
Carrying amount arising on a revaluation of Assets are recognized in the income statement to
The extent that it exceeds the balance, ifany, held in the property's revaluation reserve relating to a
Previous revaluation of the same Assets.

Upon disposal, any related revaluation reserve is transferred from the revaluation reserve to retained
Earnings and is not taken into account in arriving at the gain or loss on disposal. The details ofrevaluation
Of Assets are disclosed in note 1l to the financial statements

Depreciation
Items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated from the date they are available for use or, in respect of
self-constructed assets, ftom the date that the asset is completed and ready for use.



CEYLON FERTILIZER COIVIPANY LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3I MARCH 2022

, plant and equipment less their estild

residual values using the straight- line basis over their estimated useful lives. Depreciation is recogniz{

profit or loss. Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter ofthe lease term and their useful lives unless

ieasonably certain that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term. Land is not depreciated

Land is not depreciated; depreciation on other assets is calculated using straight-line method to altocate I
cost or revalued amount over their estimated useful lives, as follows: t

ild

I

Buildings
Container Office
Plant and Machinery

Motor Vehicles

Bicycles

Office Furniture

Office Equipment

Workshop Tools

Lab Equipment

Other Equipment

Canteen Equipment

Computer Accessories

40 Years

l0 Years

05 -10 Years

05 Years

03 Years

03 Years

03 Years

05 Years

03 Years

03 Years

05 Years

03 Years

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carn

amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount,

Depreciation of an asset begins when it is available for use whereas depreciation of an asset ceases at the ear.

ofihe date that the asset is classified as held for sale and the date that the asset is derecognized.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal or u'hen no future economic benefits :

expected from its use or disposal. The gain/loss on de-recognition ofan item ofproperty' plant and equipmen:

included in profit or loss in the year the asset iq derecognized.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date anci

appropriate.

De-recognition
The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is de-recognized upon disposal or when

No future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the

De recognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in profit or loss when item is de

Recognized.

Measurement of fair values

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses observable market data as far '

possible. Fair vaiues are categorized into different levels in a hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuatit

techniques as follows.

. Level I - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

. Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included in Level I that are observable for the asset or

Liability, either directly or indirectly.

adjuste

. Level 3

Inputs)
inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable

Further information about assumptions made

consolidated financial statements.

):i
in measuring fair values is included in the respective notes to t:

(ffi
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Revaluation Model
The Group applies Revaluation Model for the entire class of land and buildings in the statement of financial

position. Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity such that the tarrying amount does not differ
rnaterially from that which would be determined using fair values at the end of each reporting period. If the fair

values of land and buildings does not change other than by an insignificant amount at each reporting period the

Group will revalue such land and buildings every 3 years

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of such land and buildings are recognized in other

comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease for

the iame asset previously recogrized in the income statement, in which case the increase is credited to the

income statement to the extent of the decrease previously expensed. A decrease in the carrying amount arising

on a revaluation of land and buildings are recognized in the income statement to the extent that it exceeds the

balance, if any, held in the property's revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation of the same land and

Buildings. Upon disposal, inyrelated revaluation reserve is transferred from the revaluation reserve to retained

earnings andis not iaken into account in arriving at the gain or loss on disposal. The details of revaluation of
land and buildings are disclosed in note xxx to the financial statements.

Capital Work-in-Progress

Capital work-in-progress represents the accumulated cost of materials and other costs directly related to the

construction of in asset. Capital in progress is transferred to the respective asset accounts at the time it is

substantially completed and ready for its intended use.

2.4,3 IntangibleAssets
acquiied computer software and operating systems are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire

andbring to uie the specific software and systems. Intangible assets acquired are stated at cost less accumulated

amortizition and accumulated impairment losses. These costs are amortized over their estimated useful lives, as

follows:

Computer Software 05 Years

Costs associated with maintaining computer software programmers' are recognized as an expense as incurred.

2,4.4 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets
At Lach end of reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment

and intangible asiets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have impaired. lf any such

indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the

impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the

Company determines the cash-generating unit and estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit

to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the

estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects

current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates

offuture cash flows have not been adjusted,

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,

the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment

loss is recognized immediately in the statement of comprehensive income.

2.5 Financial Assets

2.5.1 The Company determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition and the Company

classifies its financial assets as follows:
a) Heldto- Maturity Investment

b) Loans and receivables
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a) Held-to- Maturity Investment ( HTM) . I
HTM investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and I
maturity other than loans and receivables. Investments are classified as HTM if the Company ha

positive intention and ability to hold them until maturity. HTM investments are included in current a:,r

Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments th{
not quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables are included in current assets, except for mat

gr.ui.r than 12 months after the end of the reporting period, which are classified as non-current

ih. Co*p*y's loans and receivables comprise subsidy receivables, ffade and other receiv

repurchase government securities, fixed deposits, prepayments, advances, and deposits, loa

employees and cash and cash equivalents in end ofthe reporting period.

2.5.2 Recognition and Initial Measurement
finan-cial assets classified as loans and receivables are recognized on the date on which the Company or

the transaction. Other financial assets are recognized on the hade-date on which the Company becomes a I
to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument. A financial asset is measured initially at fair v

plus, in the case of assets not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.
t

Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have :Tpi,{

},il:"t:i:$lrTferred 
and the Company has transferred substantiallv all risks and rewards of ownershiR ol

2.5.3 SubsequentMeasurement
a) Held-to- Maturity Investment ( HTM)

HTM investments are measured subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest meth;

Amortized cost is computed taking into account of discount or premium on acquisition and transactr

costs.

CEYLON FERTILIZER COMPANY LTD

b) Loans and receivables
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables are measured

interest method, less provision for impairment.

2.5,4 Impairment of Financial Assets

b)

at amortized cost using the effed

Assets carried at amortized cost I
The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a finand

asset is impaired. A financial asset is impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there is objec:'"

evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asse:

,loss event') and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated tuture cash flows of the finani

asset that can be reliably estimated.

For loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investments carried at amortized cost. the amount of the losi

measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future ca

flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's origi:

effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the financial assets is reduced and the amount of the loss

recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be relat'

objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the reversal of the previously recogniz'

impairment loss is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.

Inventories
Inventories (Direct and Mixed Fenilizers) are stated at cost minus subsidy. Cost is determined using the first-i

first-out (FIFO) method. The cost of mixed fertilizer comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct cof

and related production overheads. Inventories purchased locally are stated at castanet realized whichever

2.6
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2.8.

lower. Net realizable value is the subsidized value in the ordinary course of business, less applicable selling
expenses.

Consumables and packing material are stated at cost or net realized whichever is lower.

Trade Receivables
Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for sale of goods in the ordinary course of business.
Collection is expected in the normal operating cycle ofthe business and they are classified as current assets.

Trade receivables are recognized initially at fair value, which is the invoice value and subsequently measured at
the original invoice value less provision for impairment.

The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that trade
receivables is impaired. Objective evidences of impairment for trade receivables could include the Company's
past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments past the maximum credit
period of 90 days. Trade receivables are impaired and impairment losses are incurred, only if there is objective
evidence of impairment. All trade receivables are assessed individually for impairment.

The model and basis used to assess the trade receivables for impairment is as follows:

Individual Evaluation Model: Following types of trade receivables are reviewed individually to measure the

impairment loss.

i) Multi Purpose Co-operative Societies

ii) Agrarian Service Centers

iii) AuthorizedDealers
iv) Govemment Institutions and Departments

Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets
Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value

through other comprehensive income (OCD, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's contractual cash

flow characteristics and the Group's business model for managing them. With the exception of trade

receivables that do not contain a significant furancing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Transaction cost in relation to
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are dealt with through the Income

Statement. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under SLFRS 15. Refer
to the accounting policies in section xxxx, Revenue from contracts with customers. In order for a financial

asset (excluding equity instruments) to be classified and measured at amortized cost or fair value through

OCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are 'solely payments of principal and interest (SPPD' on the

principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an

instrument level. The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its
financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will
result from collecting confiactual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in
the market place (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset.

I

,{

2.9

I
2.9.1 Subsequentmeasurement

For purposes ofsubsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

Financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments)
Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)

I
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Firanciat assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses

Derecognition (equity instruments)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

2.9.2 Financial Assets at Amortized Cost (Debt Instruments)
This category is the most relevant to the Group. The Group measures financial assets at amortized

both of the following conditions are met:

The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets

collect conffactual cash flows and

The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest (EIR) method

are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the asset is derecogni

modified or impaired. The Group's financial assets at amortized cost include trade receivables, amounts

from related companies and fixed deposits.

2.9,3 Financial Assets at Fair Value through OCI (Deb Instruments)
The Group measures debt instruments at fair value through OCI
l. The financial asset is held within a business model with

if both of the following conditions are

the objective of both holding to

contractual cash flows and selling and

2. The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding For debt instruments at fair v

ityough OCI, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and impairment losses or reversals

recognize in the income statement and computed in the same manner as for financial assets measure

amoiized cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognized in OCI. Upon de recognition.

cumulative fair value change recqgnized in OCI is recycled to profit or loss. The Group currently does

own any financial asset that is classified under this category'

2.9.4 Financial Assets Designated at Fair Value through OCI (Equity lnstruments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classifu irrevocably its equity investments as

initmments designated at fair value through OCI when they meet the definition of equity under Ll
Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is determined

instrument-by instrument basis. Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled

To profit or loss. Dividends are recogrized as other income in the income statement the right of
hasbeen established, except when the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery ofpart ofthe

of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity instruments designated

value through OCI are not subject to impairment assessment. The Group currently does not oru
financial asset that is classified under this category.

2.9.5 Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading, financial

designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or financial assets ma

required to be measured at fair value. Financial assets are classified as held for trading ifthey are

for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Financial assets with cash flows that i

solely payments of principal and interest are classified and measure data fair value through profit <

irrespective of the business model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to be classi

amortized cost or at fair value through OCI, as described above, debt instruments may be designated

value through profit or loss on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly
accounting mismatch. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the stater

financial position at fair value with net change in fair value recognized in the income statement. Di

on listed equity investments are also recognized as other income in the income statement when the ri

Payment has been established. The Group currently does not own any financial asset that is classifie

this category.

2.9,6 Business Model Assessment

rL^ D:-^--!^l s]^]^-^-1- -^-+:-.,^i
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The Group makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at

a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to
management. The information considered includes:

The stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. These

include whether management's strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a

particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related
liabilities or expected cash outflows or realizing cash flows through the sale of the assets;

How the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Group's management the risks that
affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business model) and

how those risks are managed;
How managers of the business are compensated - e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of
the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and
The frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and

Expectations about future sales activity. Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do
not qualify for de recogrrition are not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Group's
continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value

basis are measured at FVTPL. Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal

and interest.
For the purposes of this assessment, 'principal' is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. ' Interest' is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic

lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Group

considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset

contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it
would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Group considers: Contingent events that

would change the amount or timing of cash flows; Terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate,

including variable-rate features; Prepayment and extension features; and Terms that limits the Group's

claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features).A prepayment feature is consistent

with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the prepayment amount substantially
represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, which may include

reasonable additional compensation for early termination of the contract. Additionally, for a financial asset

acquired at a discount or premium to its contractual paramount, a feature that permits or requires

prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the contractual paramount plus accrued (but unpaid)

contractual interest (which may also include reasonable additional compensation for early termination) is

treated as consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insigrificant at initial
Recognition.

2.9,7 Impairment of Financial Assets

The Group recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not held at

fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an

approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from
the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms .For trade

receivables and contract assets, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the

Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognizes a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs

at each reporting date.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted

for forward looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.
A financial asset is written offwhen there is no reasonable expectation ofrecovering the contractual cash

flows.

2.9.8 De recognition of Financial Assets
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arrangement; and either
(a) The Group has transferred substantially all the risks and re*ards ofthe asset, or

iUj ffr" Group has neither ffansferred nor retained substantialll all the risks and rewards of the asset.

has transferred control ofthe asset

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a

through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has r€tained the risks and rewards of
Wtren it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset,

transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to r€cognize the transferred asset to the extent

continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recopizes m associated liability. The transferred

And the alssociated liability are measured on a basis that rcflects the rights and obligations that the

has retained. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred z

measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount

consideration that the Group could be required to repay- On de-recognition of a financial asset,

difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the carying 'mount allocated to the portion of

CEYI
NOTI

2.11.

2.11.

2.11.

2.12

2.9.9

2.10

2.tr

Cash and Cash Equivalents
In the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call

banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Stated Capital
Ordiniry shares issued to the Government of Sri Lanka are classified as equity.

Financial Liabilities
Disclosure of Contingent Liabilities

asset transferred), and the sum of;
(I) the consid..uiion received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and'

iii) ery cumulative gain or loss that had been recopized ano&er comprehensive income is recogn

profit or loss

provisions for operating expenses are recognized *hen the Company has a present legal or construcl

obligation as a iesult of a past event, it is probable thar an outflow of economic resources will

required from the Company and amounts can be estimated reliably"

provisions are measured at the estimated expenditrne required to s€ttle the present obligation, based

the most reliable evidence available at the reponing date. including the risks and

associated with the present obligation'

All contingent liabilities are disclosed as a note to the financial statements unless the possibility of

outflow of resources is remote.

The Company had taken a decision in the year 2016 to rent out Polgahawela stores premises of the

Lanka Railways Department, and as at the end of the accounting year a sum of rupees 5,784,66l.

payable. Howiver, this payable amount could not be talien in to the books of accounts of the C

as no valid agreement has been reached between the tso parties.

b) Similarly, the Company had taken a decision in the year 2010 to rent out Hingurakgoda stores prem

of the Sii fanfa Railways Department and as at the end of the accountingyear a sum of rupees 764,

is payable. However, tiris payable amount could not be taken in to the books of accounts of
Company as no valid agreement has been reached between the two palties.

c) The Company had also rented out Stores premises of the Sri t^anka Mahawele Authority in the y

2Ol5 and-a sum of rupees 1,630,000 is payable for renting out the Sooriyawewa stores. This amo

2.1:a)

)

1

A flnanciat asset (or; where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Group finar

Pa!

assets) is primarily de recogniied (i.e., removed from the Group's Consolidated statement of final



Page l7
CEYLON FERTILIZER COMPANY LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3I MARCH 2022

too could not be taken in to the books ofaccounts ofthe company as no valid rent / lease agreement has

been reached between the two parties.

d) Similarly, the Company had also rented out the Kirologama stores premises of the Sri Lanka Mahawele
Authority in the year 2012 and a sum of rupees 900,000 is payable for renting out the stores. This

amount too could not be taken in to the books of accounts of the company as no valid rent / lease

agreement has been reached between the two parties.

Recognition and Measurement
Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or fair value through profit or loss

(FVTPL). A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it's a

derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at

fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in profit or loss. Other

financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Interest

Expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de

recognitions also recognized in profit or loss.

2.ll.l Derecognition of Financial Liabilities
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or

expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially

different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchanger

modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

2.11.2 Offsetting of Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated statement

of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognize

amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities

simultaneously.
2.11.3 Amortized Cost Measurement

The amortized cost of a financial asset or liability is the amount at which the financial asset or liability is
measured at initial recognition, minus principal.repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortization

using the effective interest method of any difference between the initial amount recognized and the maturity

amount, minus any reduction for impairment.

2.12 Trade and Other Payables
Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the

ordinary course of business from suppliers. Trade and other payables are classified as current liabilities as

in the normal operating cycle of the business.

Trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair value, which is the transaction price and

subsequently measured at the original invoice value as they are expected to be paid within a short period,

such that the time value of money is not significant.

2.13 Borrowings
Borowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently

carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

2.14 Borrowing Cost
Borrowing costs are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income in the period in which they are

incurred.

2.15 Government Grants
Grants fiom the government are recognized at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the

grant wilI be received and the Company will comply with all attached conditions.

aizr

ase(

tain

yol
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coStSarerecognizedinthestatementofcomprehensiveincometol
them with the costs that they are intended to compensate. Fertilizer subsidies to compensate for import

already incurred are recognized as subsidy receivable where there is a reasonable assurance that the subsidy

be received.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are included in noncurrent liabilities as def

government grants and arJrecognized in the statement of comprehensive income on a straight- line basis

the expected lives ofthe related assets.

2.16 Current and Deferred Tax
The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognized in the

compreheniive income statement, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other c'

income. In this case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income'

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted at the reporting period

applicable for the Company. Management establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of atno

expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities

their carrying a.orntr in the financial statements. Deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises from ir

recognition Jf un us.t or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of

transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates t

have been enacted at the reporting period end date and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax

is realized or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be ava

against which the temporary differencgs can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax

against current tax liabilities ancl when the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied b1

same taxation authority.

2.17 Employee Benefits
The Company has both defined benefit and defined contribution plans.

a) Defined Contribution Plan
A defined contribution plan is a post employment benefit plan under which the Company pays

CEY
NOT

2.1

contributions into a separate entity. The Company has no legal or constructive obligations to pay

contributions. The contributions are recognized as employee benefit expense when they are due.

The Company contributes l5o/o on gross emoluments of employee to Employee Provident Fund (EPF)

3%o ongross emolutnents of employee to Employee Trust Fund (ETF).

b) Defined benefit plan
The company obligation in respect of defined benefit plan is the present value of the defined

obligation at the end ofthe reporting period. The defined benefits obligation is calculated by i

actuiries using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefits obli

determined by discounting the estimated future benefit that employee have earned in return for

services in the current and prior period.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions

charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

The company will re-measure the define benefrt obligation when the amounts recognized in the fi

statemenis *ill differ materially from the amount that would be determine at the end of the reporting

Past service costs are recognized immediately in the statement of comprehensive income.

The retirement benefits obligation is not externally funded.
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c) Short-term employee benefit
Short-term employee benefits obligations are measured on an undiscounted amount expected to be paid for
related services provided by the employee.

2.18 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
Provisions for operating expenses are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required from
the Company and amounts can be estimated reliably.

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present obligation, based on the most

reliable evidence available at the reporting date, including the risks and uncertainties associated with the present

obligation.

All contingent liabilities are disclosed as a note to the financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of
resources is remote.

2.19 RevenueRecognition

Revenue is measured at the subsidized value received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable for sales

of goods, stated net of Value Added Taxes (VAT) and Nation Building Tax (NBT). The Company recognizes

revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured and when it is probable that future economic

benefits will flow to the Company.

The Company applies the revenue recognition criteria set out below to each identifiable major types of services

rendered.

a) Performanceobligationsand revenue recognition policies

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer.TheCompany

recognizes revenue when ittransfers controlovera good or service to a contract.

Thefollowingtableprovidesinformation about the nature and timing of the satisfactionof

performa nce obligations in contracts with custombrs, including significant paymentterms, andthe

related revenue recognition policies.

a

Typeof product/se rvice
Nature a ndtiming of satisfaction of

performance

Revenue recognition policies obligations, including

significant paymentterms

Sale of goods & services The Companyoperates in

different divisions and engaged in

varieties of sale of goods under
each divisions/clusters.

The revenue is recognized based on the
identified performance obligation. The

transaction price is determined taking into account

of variable considerations. The transaction price is
allocated to performance obligations
recognizedthe revenueeitheroverthe time of the
contract or point in time upon analysis of each sale

of goods under separate divisions.

Distributors and dealer
volume rebates

Distributors and dealers are

entitled to volume rebates are
given based on yearly and daily

sales and quantity over different
slabs

The Company estimate the amount of variable
consideration to which it expects to be

entitled. Giving consideration to the risk of
revenue reversal in making the estimate for
volume rebates.
The transaction price under revenue is adjusted
for the provision of volume rebates are
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recognized as revenue.

lssue of free goods The company offers free goods

to their dealers as a promotion.
The free goods granted to customer is a

material right of the customer and is accounte

as a separate performance obligation.
The revenue is allocated for the performance

obligation on their relative stand alone selling
price and the revenue is recognized at the
point in time when the performance obligatiot
is mat.

b) Interest Income
Interest income is recognized using the effective interest method.

c) Rent Income
Rent income is recognized on an accrual basis over the term oflease.

d) Gain and Losses on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount atrd I

recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.

e) Other Income
Other income is recognized on an accrual basis.

2.20 Expenses
All expenditure incurred in the running of the operation has been charged to income in arriving at the profit

the reporting period.

2.21 Events Occurring after the Reporting Period
All rnaterial events after the reporting period have been considered and where appropriate adjustments

disclosures have been made in the respective notes to the financial statements.

2.22 Commitments
All material commitments at the reporting period end have been identified and disclosed in the notes to

financial statements.

2.23 Significant Accounting Estimates and Judgments
When preparing the financial statements, management undertakes a number of judgments, estimates

assumptions about the recognition and measurement of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.

2.23.L The following are significant judgments in applying the accounting policies that have most signific

effect on the financial statements.

(a) Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets

The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an assessment of
probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized.

2.23,2 lnformation about estimates and assumptions that have the most significant effect on recognil

and measurement of assets, liabilities, income and expenses is provided below:

(a) Useful life time of Depreciable Assets

CE'
NO
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Tht
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Management reviews its estimate of the useful life time of depreciable assets at each reporting

date, based on the expected economic utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to

technical obsolescence that may change the utility of certain software and IT equipment.

(b) Defined benefit plan

The present value ofthe defined benefit plan obligations depends on a number offactors that are

determined on an actuarial basis using a number of assumptions. The assumptions are used in

determining the net cost and obligation for defined benefit plan including the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumptions will impact the carrying amount of defined benefits obligation.

NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARD AMENDMENTS ISSUED BUT NOT EFFECTIVE AS AT
THE REPORTING DATE

The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka has issued the following new Sri Lanka Accounting

Standard Amendments which will become applicable for financial periods beginning on or after 0lst April
2020 or at alater date. Accordingly, these Amendments have not been applied in preparing these Financial

Statements.

: i'i.

'.:

--t .1t a- 
.

r"T

;..

New or amended
standords

Summary of the requirement Possible impoct on Consolidated

F

stFRs 3

Definition of o Business

SLFRS 3 helps entities to determine
whether an acquired set of octivities and

ossets is a business or not. These

omendments clorify the minimum

requirements for a business, remove the
ossessment of whether morket
porticipants ore capable of replocing any

missing elements, add guidance to help

entities ossess whether an acquired
process

ts substontive, norrow the definition of a

business and of outputs, ond introduce on

optional fair volue concentrotion test.

where this enhonces the
relevance or faithful

Representotion of the Financiol

Statements.

LKAS 1 ond LKAS I
Definition of Materiol

Amendmentsto LKAS 7 and LKAS 8 on

"Accounting Policies, Chonges in

Accounting Estimates ond Errors" to align

the definition of "moterial" ocross the
standards ond to clorify certoin aspects of
the term "definition". The new definition
stotes thot. "informotion" is materiol if
omitting , misstating '

Pr.

:ounte

tance
selling

1e

ligatior



I

i

/ffiil

CEYLON FERTILIZER COMPANY LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

N Flill

T0'l'l

or obscuring it could reasonably be

expected to influence decision thot the
primory users of generol purpose

Financial Stotements make on the bosis of
those Financial Statements, which provide

finonciol informotion obout o specific
reporting entity.

Revcnuc

Sale of I;c

C.rt "t.,
Purchascs

Direct I:s

Cost of l'
Finishcd (

Finishcd I

4.1 l'ur
Ferl

Imr
Dut
Poi
Mis

l)is
l.rn
Stc'

Cul

Du
Sar
'ln
lrl
Bat

l.or

l)at

I)c
l-o
Iix
Un

Sul

4.2 Dit
Mi
Pn

Ha

La

Tr
Fc

Othcr
Income

Liquida
Circuit
Dispatc

Overag
Land C

Sales ot

Non Re

Amorti
Rent ln

Profit /

Eming
Eaminl
Clainr t

Labora

Inconte

Eaminl

es in brat

Amendments to
References to
Conceptuol Framework
in SLFRS Stondards

Conceptual Fromework which will be used

in Stondord setting decisions with
immediote effect. Key chonges include;

. lncreqsing the prominence of
stewardship in the obiective of
financiol reporting

. Reinstoting prudence os o

component of ne utrolity

o Defining o reporting entity, which

moy be o identitY , or o Portion of
on entity

o Revising the definitions of an

osset ond o liobilitY

. Removing the probdbility
threshold for recognition ond

odding guidonce on de-

recognition

o Adding giidance on different
me osu re me nts bosis, o n d

o Stating thot profit or loss is the
p ri mo ry pe rform o nce i n dicotor
ond thot, in principol, income and
expenses in other comprehensive

income should be recycled where

this enhances the relevonce or

faithful representotion of the
Financiol Stotements.
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Revcnuc

Sale of'Icrtilizcr

Page23

in Sri Lankan

2021

t,209,392,948 2,2s7,6s7,781
1 ,209 ,392 ,9j!8 2 ,2s7 ,657 ,7 8t

Cost ol S:tlcs

Purclrascs

Direr.:t I:xpcuses

Cost of I'r'otltrcliorr
Finishcd (iocrris as at 0 I

Finislrcd Goods as at J I

4.1 4s4,904,491 1,455,727,883
4.2 I 19,868,039 548,421,499

574,772,530 2,004,149,382
April
Murch

446,784,423
(152,61 I,536)

284,151.794
(446,784,423)

868,945,4t7 1,841,516,753
4.1 l)urclr:rscs

licrtilizcr Inrpor t liil ls

Il'tsrttattcc

Duly and I)rrly Strrclta|gc .

l)ort arrtl Airyxtlt l)cvclopmcnt Tax
Misccllrrrrcous (Sr i Lirnka I'>ort Authority)
I)isoharlling I 

;.xpcnscs

[.anrlirtg (.)lutrgcs

Stcvr:rlolirrll C)hargcs

Cuslonr I)uty trrtl Cltargcs

[)crurrrlirl',r.: ()l r arg,cs

Sarnpl irrli (.'lrirrgcs
'l ransprrlt :rnrl I lirrrdlirrg Chargcs
I-cttcr ol (lrcrlil (lhargcs

[]anli Chlrgcs
I-ooal l'urcltasc

I'ackirtg Matcrials

I)clcntion Clritrgcs

l,ocal Ag,crrcy Conrruissiorr

Iixcharrllc (Orrirr) / l.oss

tJnrcal izcd lixchangc Gain/l-oss

Subsidy Clainrcd

t2,179,409,158
2,4t 5,799

85,s68.00

915,34'7,902
1,661,928

2,268,350
26.319,717

210,485,119

I , I 08,647
(80,859)

3,579,8s0

197,464,242

38,5 t5,269
20,s l 0,828
I 6,148,450

5,921,013

3,028,557

2,368,014

373,856,9_96

(s,s27,1t6,349\ (t2,544,686.66s)

4,6t2,205,399
773,985

5,420
340,63 6,8 I 8

7s6,1 60
504,723

7,88 8,656
61,51 8,1 77

1,534,718

50,7 6t,123
23,545,7 59
5s,652,462

25,476,225
229,641

4,138,932
(25,458,3 i3)
821,8s0,9s4

454,904,497 1,455,727,993

4.2 Dirccl Exlcnscs
Mixing Charges

Provision for Impairment olNon Moving Inventories

Handling Charges

Labour Charges
'fransporl Charges to District Fertilizer Storcs

Fcrtilizer Stock Adjestment

799,821

36,922,325
5,806,640

l 05, I 04,697
(28,76s,444)
119,868,039 548,421,499

3,771,428
(1,272,843)

t15,441,456
10,393,176

388,716,187

3r,372,096

Othcr Opcrating Income
Income lrom Penalties - Local
Liquidated Dantages Income

Circuit Bungalorv Income - Polonnarurva

Dispatch Income

Overage Prentium
Land Conrpensation

Sales of Polythene and WPP Bags

Non Refundable Tender Deposit lncome
Amortization ol Covernment Grant

Rent Incorne

Profit / (Loss) on Disposal ofProperty, Plant and Equipment / Scraps
Eming fronr scrps and other

Earnings from Transpofl
Clainr against Perfbnnance borrd

Laboratory 1'esting Inconte

lnconre frorn Penalties (local) & Others

Eanring tronr Famrs

381,672

641,537

86,97 t ,7 
-67

t,192,049
l,875,300

90,0 r 4

zr,ios
22,546,'.I55

693,406
4,0t9,5s7

30,000
104,584,039 118,4

i:

346,5 s0
41,875,3 89

1,489,545

14,3 8 l ,520
2,921,042

32,478,550
333,1 40
838,500

25,000
27,248

29,250
490,000
1 56,708

9,166,s97
2s,000

igures in brackcts indicatcs dcductionsr
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i.lministrativc Expenses
-:ctors' Remuneration

.l :,rr Vehicles Running Chairman / Directors

-.:phone,Fax.E-mail and Intemet Charges-Chairman/Dircclors

>i.-retary Fees

i:laries - Executive

S:laries - Non Executive
,-)r ertime

Tralelling and Subsistence

Employees' Provident Fund

Employees'Trust Fund

Fuel Allowance for Managers

Tea and Dust Allowance
Annual Bonus

\ledical Leave Payment

Employees on Contract Basis

1-raining and Scholarships

\\'eekend and Other Allowances
Employee Compensation

\ledical Expenses

Clothing and Medical Allowance

itledical Insurance

Other Allowances
Stafl Transport

Annual Incentive

Sraff Welfare
Entertainment
Electricity
Telephone,Fax,E-mail and Internet Charges

Fire Insurance

License and Insurance

Cash in Transit and Cash in Safe Insurance

Postage

Printing and Stationery

Periodicals and Books

Olfi ce Equipment Maintenance

Olfice Expenses

Vehicle Running ExPenses

Vehicle Maintenance
Water Bill
Legal Fees

Security Charges

LablEquipment Maintenance

Plant, Machinery and Equipmcnt Maintenance

Building Maintenance

Furniture and Fittings Maintenance

Public Notice Charges

Road Dcvelopment ExPenses

Computer and Accessories Maintenance

Rent

E,xpenses lor 1'emporary Storage

Charity and Donation

Depreciation
Amorlization ol Intangible Assets

Audit Fees

Profit / (Loss) on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equiprnent / Scraps

Balancc C / F

in brackets indicatcs dcductions.

ir Sri Lar*att

2021

2,236,0_6'7

130,000
48, I 86,498

I 59,056,380
29,411,280

1,2t1,534
27,387,9r1

5,963,61 6

8,'125,879
6,39r,39'7
4,839,300

1s,399,04'7

1,502,218
507,300
885,162

5,547
12,742

4,333,432
7,789,823

619,300
1,067,998

48,431,198
4,325,'731

237,284
4,706,082

I 0,00 I,240
573,900
440,15'7

47,054
826,120

4,591,300
52,060

628,901
1,28'7,626

5,842,163
5,955,850
t,746,944
3,401,191

24,t60,134
417,4s0

939,232
5,379,194

14,295

3, I 43,036
83,460

3,804,933
2,555,176

700

11,015

4 r ,088,023
4,582,159

950.000

1,9s0,572
245,162
129,640
100,000

47,451,944
159,096,872
39,2r9,1s'7

2,363,991

30,637,710

6,t27,542
7,222,001
't,425,470

4,9't t,150
r6,095,527

r,066,364
896,500

t,293,746
700,000

5,798
4,468,7'10
8,392,200

686,815
1,201,613

40,470,088
4,637, l 85

923,393
5,684,281
8,572,650

552,878
681,536

32,s92
631,lll

4,139,137
40,450

523,710
1,592,803

6,161,497
7,113,229
2,173,228

347,709
30,769,685

669,866
889,0 I 8

'7,440,771

28,460
3,235,051

5,027,422
I ,281 ,009
4,985,305

350,000

53,1 30,342
4,517,354

824,000

to the Financial Statemcnts Continued

-TnsJl8fu,l? 5J1),174,971

6m
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NOTESToTHEFINANCIALSTATEMENTSFoRTIIEYEARENDED3IMARCH2020
2022 'tr) l

li:tlancc I] / Ii
Non Audit lrccs

Arrdit l{clatcd Fccs

('rutsttllitlrcY liccs

Wolk Slxrll'lixrls I :x1lr:ndil'ure

Srrnitut y l:ircil ilit:s

Vclriclc I lirinl', ('lrlrlgcs

( )llrct l:tlrriptrrcr)l N4ililltcllillloc

l'nn,isirttt litl l(clircrncot Ilcnclit obligation

llunk (ilr:rrgcs

lnsurancc (llaittr

Sports I rquiprrloltt N4aintctrance

(Ovcr) / Undcr l)rovision ol llccurrcrlt E'xpenses

Circuit Bungalow ExPenses

Gardening and Landscaping Expenses

Natural Disaster ExPenses

Laboratory Building Maintenance

Laboratory ExPenses

Laboratory EquiPment lnsurance

Registration Fees

Promotional ExPcnses

Advertising and Publicity Notices

Written-offof Bad Debts

Sales Commission

Net Finance Income

Interest Income
Interest on Fixed Deposits and REPO Investments

Interest from EmPloYees Loans

Interest ExPenses t

lnterest on Overdra ft s/Loans

Figures in brackets indicates dcductions'

No(es to the Financial Statemcnts Continued

505,886,637
90,000

52,330

404,073
29,'140

4,185,426
I ,081 ,206

626,607

3,4 l8,l 99
'704,401

773,57 6

5,650

1,563,7 4',7

321,998
?,847,058

80,000

6,1 70

213,602

1 3,857

539,17 4,971

95,000
I 10,283

2,255,150
1,900

4,31 0,993
3,321,172

524,'7 66

l l ,21 1,93 I

l, I 39,468

(1,369,197)

124,723
'1,336,961

20,000
708

146,423

14,826

.710.823 136

\
7'1,085

l4

180,425,396 210,993

I I
181

7s2,982
12,r56
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CEYLON FERTILIZER COMPANY LIMITED (rrpresser'uJrilau<azRzpees,)

NOTES TO TIIE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH

l1 ProDerty, Plant and Equipment

Cost 01 April 2021 Additions Disposal 3l March 2022

tand
Biological Assets

Buildings
Container Office
Plant and Machinery
Motor vehicle
Furniture and Fittings
Office Equipment
Computer Equipment
Other
Total

1,868,965,707

2,086,200
892,273,620

3,265,500
21,039,417

49, I 95,850

23,655,80 I

13,720,596

25,316,024
19,264,125

1,652,;98
2,78 1,000

608,712

4,508

1,225,754

t,270,520
208,600

1,868,965,707

2,086,200
893,925,8 I 8

6,046,500

21,648,129
49,195,850
23,660,308

14,946,349

26.s86.544
19,472,725

2,918,782,840 7,751,291 - 2,926,534,130

Depreciation o1 April 2o2l charge for the
Disposal 31 March 2022

Buildings
Container Office
Plant and Machinery
Motor Vehicle
Fumiture and Fittings
OIfice Equipment
Computer Equipmenl
Other

139,116,359 28,263,639 167,379,999

I,006,928
14,010,778
48,599,438

20,552,894
r 1.861.199

21,84s,02s

864fi1

i

I

732,638
I 2,630,054
48,474,438

18,784,425

9,908,934

15,766,828

274,290
1,380,724

125,000

1,768,469

1,952,265

6,078,197

7.379,059 1,245,438

252,792.735 41,088,023 - 293,880,7s8

Land

Biological Assets

Buildings
Container OIfice
Plant and Machinery
Motor Vehicle
Fumiture and Fittings
OfIice Equipment

Computer Equipment
Other

1,868,965,707 1,868,965,707

2,086,200

726,545,819
5,039,572

7,637 ,350
596,413

3,107,4t4
3,085,1s0

4,741,519

2,086,200
753,t57,261

2,532,862
8,409,363

721,413
4.871.376

3,8t1,662
9,549,196

10,848,228 I 1,885,066

,,63r,653,3?3 2,6

Land and buildings of some of the distnct fertilizer stores located at Hingurakgoda, Akuressa, Matale, Kurunagala, Nuweraeliya

Kegalle, Madhavachchiya, Kuruvita, Dodangoda, Mathugama, Koggala and Weeravila used for operational activities are not recognized

under property, plant and equipment as omerships or leasing arangements of such assets are not clear. Currently, the company is in

process ofmaking contractual affangements to transfer the legal litle of such assets.

t2 01 April 2021
Expenditure

Incurred
Amount

Capitalizcd
31 March 2022Capital Work-in-Progress

Kataragama Bdngalow 676130 676,729

676.729 676,729

The Board has decrded to temporarily suspend the construction ofbungalow in Kataragama at the board meeting held on 26 February

20t6.

Figurcs in brackets indicatcs deductions.

Notes to the Financial Statements Continued
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3l I\{arch 2022

22,910.795
22,910,795

3I N{arch 2022

17.932.ts7

2021

9,560,797

2021

446,184,423

8,686,840

466,488,402
('t1,767,468)

94,985,181 388,720,934

997 ,s33,036
(t44,67t.108) 044.67t.108)

8s2,86 I,928
27,068,543,924 24,819,16s,393
28,453,9J I,827 25,672,027 ,32t

1,38s,0n,522
t2,892,083

87,357,30 I

55,928

7,500,000

844,595,839

r 3,092,083
44,806,88s 44,93 1,885

250,264,434

178,792
60,487,761
86,602,049

997,533,036

24,607,904,150

r 2,600,000
t77,986,015

883,6 I I

t9,791 ,6-16

CEYLON FI'R'I'I I,IZI.:II

NoTES To'l'lll'l l"lNr\N('lr\t, s't'r|il'r\'il,:N'1's r,'or{'r'ilrt yIlAIt uNDED 3r MARCII 202r

l3 lntnnAiblr 4sscls
0l April 2021 Addilions

Cost
CornpLrtcr Sollwirlc

Disposals
22,910,795
22,910,795

Anrortizltion 0l April 2021 Charge
for the Year

Cornputer Softrvare
I 3,349,998 4,582.ts9

13,349,999 4,5g2,159 17,932,157

\\irittcn Doryn \/aluc
2022

Computer Software
4,978,638

l4 I nyen torics
2022

Direct Fertilizer
Consumables

Packing Material

I)rovision lbr Impairrnent

I 52,6 I 1,536

|,583,422
8,557,691

172,752,649
('t7,767,468)

l'rade and Othcr Rcccivables
Trade Receivables
Provision tbr Impainnent

Other Recervables

l5. l

15.2

I,530,059,01 I

l5.l Trade Reccivables
Government Departments
Shortage on Sale

Debtors on Loan
Agrarian Service Centers
Authorized Dealers

Distributors

1'he ageing ofthe trade receivables are as follows
Up to 3 Months
3 ro 12 Months
More than One ( l) Year
Over Ten ( I 0) Years

87,348,52 I

25,806,580
868,09 I ,405
549,s58,977

86,602,049
I,530,0s9,01 I

itnpairment. Certain trade receivables are fbund to be impaired and provision for impairment has been
Trade receivables have bccn reviewed for
made on the basis as stated in note 2. I L

15.2 Other Reccivablcs

(Note I)

:"1:j,:?:l::l,l^t^f,iTTl1 ry ?01.?tt6: 
in the.Pothuwil stores an assresate amount of Rs. s,ss4,313.2tt- had been identified as stock shortase

iii:ii^t]1t1111t" ll]:"I"ti,:o in the financial statements net of recoveries. However, in the intemal investigation canied out by the Internalrret ul rcuuvclrcs. nowever, ln Ine Intemal lnvestlgatton carfled out by the Internal
Audit Depa(lxent, subsequent to the financial year, corresponding to stock movernenl in the same store, it was evidenced to suspect that certain
f'raudtrlcnt transacIions had been occurred evcn bcfore the finarrcial year 2015 / 16. Consequerrtly, il was identified an aggregated amount ofRs.
7'934,2791'ltas been subjected to rnisappropriation of inventories rvhich results stock shortage / Ioss to the company as ofthe date ofsigning of
thescfirtancial staternents Duringthcyear2ol7/I8,thecornpanyhastakenstepstofiledacivil caseintheDistrictCourtofGarnpahaforthetotal
losses incrrrrcd lo lhe cornnanv and the Govemmeni amo,rltins ro Rs l4 796 2isl-

!igures in Ilr^ckcts irrdi.rtcs dcduc(iors.

'Jotes to lhe I.itrrnci^l Stntcrnqlls Coutiructl

General Treasury -

Road Development
Subsidies
Authority

26,913,s36,703
12,600,000

n2,649,404
r,097,61I

26,t63,097
55,928

Others

Deposits

Advance and Prepaid Expenses
Cash Sortagc - Stock Officer
Unrcalized Stock veriance

1,530,059,0I I 997,s33,0J6

fr l1

l't't,: r )

I5
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CEYLON FERI'ILIZIR COMI'ANY l,l]\'ll'l lll) (Erprcssedin.trir-ankanRupees)

NO'TES ]'O ]'HE FINANCIAL STA]'I|MIiN'I'S FOTI 1'IIE YI'AII IiNDED 31 MARCI,I 2021 2022 2021

I ,U Employees Loans and Advances
Festival Advances

Motor Cycle Loans

Personal Loans

468,750 s61,750
402,9s9 s95.251

34.598,8 r l 38.014.27 s
35,470,521 39.171,276

Personal loans are measured at fair value using the interest rate of4.27o instructed by the Government circular under procurement guidelines
para XXIV subsection 3.8 since the company is covered under establishment code, the rate at which the loans have been granted is considered
as the market interest rate for employees working at government organizations.

17 Investments in Government Securities

2022 2021

Treasury Bills 807,101,718 730,446,740

The investments in treasury bills are the investmenls made by the company from the additional funds and certain claims and compensation
received to the company. Though, the management maintained these investments separately in the books ofaccounts, none ofthe investments
are considered to bc "Planned Assets" for any Retirement Benefits commitments.

Thc carrying amount of the investments have been measured at amortized cost in compliance with the SLFRS 9 using Effective Interest Rate
(ErR).

l8 Investments in Fixed Deposits

2022 2021

Fixed Deposits 2,523,866,395 2,3

I8.l The company has enlered into a Private Public Partnership agreement lor purchasing of liquid fertilizer with Baylawn (Pvt) Ltd and, as

per the agreement a credit facility, amounting to Rs. I l2 Mn have been arranged to Baylawn (Pvt) Ltd by pledging a company's Fixed
Deposit No. 00460010010802 / Rs. 240Mn. The oulstanding balance of the facility as at 03rd March 2018 was 75.98 Mn.

18.2 The carrying amount of the fixed deposits haui.been measured at amortizcd cost in compliance with the LKAS 39 using Effective Interesl

Rate (EIR). Further, these investments are maintaining for short term liquidity requirements of the company rather being held for their

maturity, therefore, these investments have been considered as "Loans and Receivables" financial assets in the financial statements.

l8.l Fixed deposits No. l'7717 & 4087, total amounting to Rs. 228.80 Mn at the reporting date have been pledged against the Overdraft
Facility of Rs. 206 Mn.

I8.4 Irixed deposils No.75984713,76767521,76767537,16767440,81281476,17'717and 40807, total amounting to Rs. ll04.l Mn as at the
reporting date have been pledged against the LC Bond Facility

l9 Cash and Cash Equivalents
2022 2021

I

l-avorablc Balances
Cash in Hand

Current Accounts

Saving / Call Deposits (Ref: Note 18.4)

Llnfavorable Balances
Bank Balance Overdrafl

233,664 25,t34
134,276,675 499,389
t63.194.626 195.5t0.424
297.704,965 196.034.947

404,521

z0 Stated Capital
Number of Ordinary Shares lssued and Fully Paid

Ordinary Share Capital lssued and Fully Paid

50,245,608 50,245,608

@
I I{o,aluation Rescrvc

The revaluation reserve relates to the revaluation surplus of property, plant and equipment, once the respective revalued assets have been
disposed, portion ofrevalued surplus is transferred to retained earnings.

22 Retirement Benefits Obligation
Note 2022 2021

Balance as at 01 April
Expenses Recognized in Profit or Loss
Payments Made During the Year
Acturial Gain Losson obligation

Balance as at 3l March

79,731,435
3,4 18,199

(9,23s,432)

68,393,211

I l,2l 1,93 l
(7,829,240)
7,955,528

73,914,153 79,731,435

22.1

I I,2{14,313 11,211,931

22,1 I)rpensc Recognized in Cornprehensive Incomc
CLrrrent Service Cost
lnterest Charge for the Year

3,3 t 1,169

1 ,973,t44
4,030,643

I 7,1 8 I ,288

Jigures in brackets indicates deductions.
I
lotcs to the Financial Statements Continued
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(bprqsed in Si Lankan Runees)

10.5

1,150

240
t-2

60

75,296,789
85,429,294

169,037,796
(7,963,264)

139,082,220

t72,123,969
4.757.988

176,88 t,957

(18.664.192')

84,005,044

68,s30,974
860,270

t3,929,039

667,868

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3I MARCH 2O2I

t
22.2 Retirement Benefits Obligation Contd..,

These assumptions developed by independent actuarial consultant
measure the retirement benefits obligation.

The principal assumptions used are as follows.
Discount Rate [%]
Future Salary Increases [Rs.] - Executive
Future Salary Increases [Rs.] - Other
Staff Turnover Factor [%]
Retirement Age [Yrs]

are based on the management's best estimates of variables used to

8.5

Fixed Rate 1.5%

0-2
60

Actuarial Gain / Loss does not arise as the company has not done an actuarial valuation ofthe gratuity liabilities for the previous year.

In addition to the above, demographic assumptions such as mortality, withdrawal and disability are considered for the actuarial valuation.
The 2007 mortality table issued by the London Institute ofActuaries (A 1967/70 mortality table) has also been used in the valuation.

The sensitivity ofthe present value ofretirement benefits obligation (gratuity provision at the reporting date) to changes in the weighted
principle assumptions by lo% are:
The Principle Assumptions Sensitivity [%l

Increase in l7o Decrease 17o
Gratuity Liability Change

Increasc in I 7o Decrease I 7o

Salary Escalation Rate [%]
Discount Rate [%]

14.5 I

0.99
1.87

1s.58
84,638,098

74,646,294

t,, Deferred Taxation
2022 2021

Balance as at 01 April
(Originated) / Reverse for the Year Recognised
Defened Tax Expenses Recognised in OCI for
Balance as at 3l March

in Profit or Loss

Revaluatron Surplu

139,082,220
(37,246,367)

(941,06s) (2t,992,312)
100,894,78823.1

23.1 The Analysis of Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities
Defcrred Tax Liability
From Accelerating Depreciation
F-rom Revaluation Surpluses

Deferred Tax Assets

From Retirement Benefits Obligation
. Deferred Tax Assets Arising accounting provisions

168,202,520
3,816,923

172,019,443

(17,739,397) (19,135,544)
(s3,385,258)
(71,124,655) (37,799,737)
100,894,788 139,082,220

The def'ened tax liability on revaluation gain for non-depreciable assets (Land use for administrative purposes) should represent the
current obligation to pay taxes in the future when the asset is sold. However, since there is no present obligation to sell the land, there is
no present obligation to pay taxes. Therefore, no deferred tax liability recognised for the revalued lands.

24 Trade and Other Payables

2022 2021
Trade Payables

Other Payables

Payable to Organic Supplier (Government Funded)
24.1

2,559,799,320 5,686,914,923
I 88,938,791

2t4.802.469
2.963.540.581 5.770.919.966

24,1 OtherPayables
Sundry Creditors
Retention Money
General Treasury
VAT/PAYE
Others

Payable to SLPA

iigurcs iil brackets indicates deductions.

Notes to the Financi{l Statem€nts Continucd

173,051,227

478,633
14,962,309

(141,239)
s70,968
16,892 t6.892

188.938.791 84.00
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH
Note

2022 2021

lnterest Bearing Borrowings Short I'erm
PeopIe's Bank
Balance as at 0l April
Obtained During the Year
Paid During the Year
Balance as at 3l March

Non-current Portion

Cunent Portion

19,657,929,071
8,39 1 ,084,309

14,103,482,956
n,437 ,869,814

(2,828,929,633) (s,883,423,698)
25,220,083,747 19,657,929,071

13,451,229,712 15,991,700,302
l 1,768,8s4,035 3.666.228.769
25,220,083.747 19,657,929,071

Thcse loans are arranged by the treasury and may be settled during the next year as fund are available.

26 Dcposits and Advances Received
Relundable Performance Bond
StafT Security Deposits

Re{undable Deposits

Iicceipt in Advance

SLrndry Salary Dcduction
I:xccss on Sales

3,874,499
3,9s9,993
3,292,950
6,0s6,227

19,166

746,679
17,949,514 22$58,923

3,874,499
3,875,',l91

4,296,053
9,145,761

120,139

746,679

27 lnconrc Tax Payables
llalancc as at 0l April
l)ayrncnts Made for Previous Year
l'rovision for the Current Year
lluhncc as at 3I March

4,345,255
(4,34s,255)
21,019,056

(41,8r5,681)

46. 1 60.936
21.019.056 4.345.

ztl Accrucd Expenses and Provisions
Accrued Expenses 63.7 41.302 78,201,983

63.741.302 78.201.983

29

JI

Capital and Other Commitments
No capital commitments were engaged during the year and outstanding as'of the reporting date.

Events Occurring after Reporting Period
Tlrcrc were no events occurred, which required adjustments or disclosure in these financial statements bctween the 3l March reporting
dale and the date olaulhorization.

Contingent liabilitics
The Company has contingent liabilities in respect of legal claims arising in the ordinary course ol business. Unless recognized as a
provision (Note 29), management considers these claims to be unjustified and possibility ofan outflow ofresources for their settlement

is remote. This evaluation is consistent rvith legal advices olthe company's legal division. Accordingly, no provision has been made for
such legal claims.

However, a court case is pending as at the reporting date frled against the company by D.S.S Construction in relation to the construction

bill outstanding net oftenders deposit recovered amounting to Rs. 7,243,400/- for the Road Construction carried out in the Head Office

prcmise. Since, the legal proceeding is in the preliminary stage provision for legal claims or the losses could not be ascertained and no

adjustments relating to the transactions have been recognized in the financial statements.

Figures in brackets indicates dcductions.

Notes to the Financial Statements Continued
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CEYLON FERTILJZER COMPANY LIMITED (ExPlesredi' 'lri'-otrtu' R4Pees,

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR TI,IE YIAIT ENDED 31 MARCII 2022

33 Financial Instruments and Risk l\{anagement

The accounting classification ofeach category offinancial instruments and their carrying amounts reported in the statement offinancial position are

stated below.

Carrying Values ofFinancial Assets and Liabilitics.
2022 2021

iiabilrtiesreportedinthestatementoffinancialposition

are as follows,
I'INANCIAL ASSETS

Financial Assets at Amortized Costs

Treasury Bills
lnvcstments are stated at amortized cost uslng the effective interest method

Trade and Other Receivables

Employecs Loans and Advances

lnvcstments in Government Securilies

Investments in Fixed DePosits

Cash and Cash Equivalents

807,101,718 730,446,740

28.598,602,935 25.8t6.698,429

2,523,866,395 2,396,023,005
297.704.965 196.034.947

35,470,521
807,101,718

39,17 | ,27 6

730,446,740

JZ.IOL.lqO.fJ+ />.t tolJ t+.J, t

Financial assets at amotized cost are stated at amortized cost using the effectiv€ inter€st method
3J.069,848,251 29,908,821,137TOTAL I-INANCIAL ASSETS --'""- '- .''_.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities measured at Amortized Costs

lnteresl Bearing Borrowings
Trade and Other Payables

Deposits and Advances Received t

Bank Overdrafts

Total Financial Liabilities
The financial liabilities are stated at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

2s ,220 ,083 ,7 47 19 ,6s7 ,929 ,07 t

2,963,540,58 I

17,949,s14

5,770,919,966
22,058,923

- 404.52t I

28.201.573.847 2s.451312,481

Financial Risk Facto

The coffrpany has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments.

0l Credit Risk
02 Liquidity Risk
03 Market Risk ( Cunency Risk and Interest Rate Risk)

The financial instruments olthe company comprise ofinvestments in term deposits and government securities, bank deposits, and short-term bank

borrowings. The company also has trade receivables and payables and subsidy receivables arising from its core business activities. The main purpose

ofl investment in short- term deposits and short-term borrowings are to raise and maintain liquidity for the operations.

01 Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk offinancial loss to the company ifcounterparty fails to meet its contractual obligations. Credit risk arises principally from

deposits held with banks and financial institutions, cash and cash equivalents (excluding cash in hand), receivables from customers and subsidy

receivables from the Treasury.

The maximum risk exposures of financial assets that are subject to credit risk are equal to their carrying amounts.

Following table depicts the maximum risk exposure of financial assets reported at the reporting date.

Risk Exposure to Financial
2022 2021

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Investments in Government Securities

lnvestments in Covernment Securities

297 ,471,301
807,101,71 8

2,523,866,395

I 96,009,8 I 3

730,446,740
2,396,023,O0s

Trade and Other Receivables 28'453'931'827 25'672'027 '321

Figures in brackets indicate deductions

Notes to the Fin^ncial Statements continu€d

r
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('t'l\ LON I;I|RTILIZER COMPANY LIMITED rFxoressed in Sri I'anlan RuTecs)

NO.I'I,]S'I'().I'IIIi I'INANCIAI, STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3I MARCH 2022
CEYt

NOTT

ll. i;intnciul Ilisk l,'trctors Contd...

'l rrr<lr tntl Othcr llcceivablcs
;h;..,;;il,ry tradcs rnainly with agrarian service centers, government institutions and authorized dealers'

,1,,,,1ity .l'u,,thurizcd dcalors bascJo,r thc past expericnce and other factors such as financial guarantees

lrrrlrrrrecs irrc rllonihrcd on an ongoing basis by the management and the Board

'l'lrc tr1,.c trrtitlysis ol'tlto conlpany's tradc rcccivables is given in Note I 5'

The management assesses the credit

from them. In addition, outstanding

The subsi;

ln

32

I lrc |orrrPirny cslrhliShcs policy lbr provision for i[rpairment (Refer note 2.7 to the financial statements) that replesents the estimate ofincu

Irrrcs rrr rcsltt:el 0l-tlarlc rcccivatrlcs. According to the impairment policy established' customers are rcviewed individually*to measure

l,,l;;i,,,;i ,l;i' ;:i;;;";;;;-,,. t5 t. (hc tnancial statements retatingtoirade receivables and details orprovision ror impairment losses

Srrlrrltll' ltccclvlhles
l hc rcccrvrrlrlcs rcl)rcscnt lcrtrlizcr subsiclics to be received from the Treasury to compensate for import costs already incurred '

t(.(ctvill)lc is cxlrccletl t() rccovcr within a period of 180-270 days. The company's exposure to Credit risk arises lrom default

e ()utrn( luirl ohlrl',itlitttr ol'tho'l rcasury' rvith a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of the receivables

3l:::l |,il'ffil flill;] ",,,", 
1inancial assets of rhe company comprises deposits held with banks and financral institutions' cash and

^.^^-+--^+,.-l ^^iia. ruith. mrYi
;;ilr;':il "il ;;;;;;;;r"rure to credit risk arises from defauit in meeting contractual oblisation of contractual parties, with a max

exposure equal to rhe carrying amount of these financial instruments. The. company *"1u*,-1t:,:::dit risks with regard to these fin

instruments by mainly placing its fund with state financial institutlons and other govemment lnstitutions

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The company's

managingliquidityistoensure,asfaraspossible,thatitwillalwayshavesufftcientcashtomeetitsliabilitieswhendue'underboth
unexpected conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses'

company monitor financial assets and liabilities and prepares variance report quarterly by comparing with the annual budget The m

monitors the daily bank balances and \iquidity requirements to ensure thai the company has sufficient cash to meet operational needs'

The following tabte depicts the compafiy's financial assets and liabilities maturity analysis as at 3l March 2021 based on the remalnrng p

at the end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscountod

flows.

Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financial Assets
Investments in Government Securities

Investments in Government

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Trade and Other Receivables

Employees Loans and Advances

Total Undiscounted Financial Assets

Financial Liabilities
Interest Bearing Borrowings

Trade and Other Payables

Dcposits and Advances Received

Bank Overdralts
Totat Undiscounted Financial Liabilities

Net Undiscounted Financial Assets / (Liabilities)

approach

normal

Carrying Amount 6 Month or Less 6 - 12 More lhan

807,101,718 - 807,101,718

2,523,866,395 2,193,32r,465 330,544,930

297,704,965 297,704,965

28,453,931,827 28,4s3,93t,827
521

,778

Interest Ratc Risk
The company's exposure to interest risk is the changes in market interest rates relate

Rs2l,077,869lofthecompany'sinterestbearingloansandborrowingscarried
including term deposits placed rvith state banks The company monitors interest

However. interest are paid by Governrnent's treasurv

Figures in brackets indicate deductions

I 1,768,854,035 t3,4sl ,229.71:.

5,636,893,295 3,906,516.96

t7,949,514

to the interest beanng borrowings with a fixed interest

interest at fixed rates. The company has bank

25,220,083,747
2,963,540,581

17,949,514

03 lf.larfei Rist< ( Currency Risk and Interest Rate Risk)

Market risk is the risk,f,ut 
"tungl, 

i".uif..t prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates which will affect the company's

or the carrying value of holdings of financial instruments

Currency Risk
The company,s exposure to currency risk arising from fluctuations tn the value of US Dollar (US'l 

:9i'T:11" Il^:1:"1,::f^t-e.f::
;;;5;il;;'"t,"*.i i. sri lanka Rupees to freety float against USD during the reporting period. The company's functional currencl

respect of imports fertilizers is USD however settlements of imports are made through rupee accounts revenue is USD in which most ofl

transactions are denominated. Certain bank balances are denominated in USD'

The company has reported tbreign exchange losses included in the operating results for the reporting period 2021 is Rs 373,856'9961

rate risk by actively monitoring intcrest rate

lrlgrr

---wics6t.ss,t ts.lzs.sas.eog rto.ors.lts'gort (tr'rst'zzs'-:

/t/l/
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32
ff:"::j|*ll'ii'J,it'rl,.s includes Govemment of Sri Lanka, State-owned Enterprises, other Related Entities and kev

management Personnel.

Transactions with Key Management Personnel

According to the Sri Lanka AcJounting Standards LKAS.24 .,Related party disclosures" Key Management personnel are those having

responsibility for planning, di.".ting"and controlling the activities of the entity directly or indirectly Accordingly' the Board of

Directors and the General Manager have been classified as Key Management Personnel'

2,325,3'14 2,325,374
Remuneration and Other Short - Term Employee Benehts

Rel"t.O PartY Transactions

oetaitsorsignircantrelatedpartytransactionsthatcompanycarriesoutareasfollows

Transaction Value Balance (Due

Name of the Rchted Party Nature of Transactions (Rs.) to)/Due from

Govemment of Sri Lanka

State-Owned EnterPrises

Other Govemment Related Entities Recoveries of Trade Receivables

Capital Grants

Sulsidies Received out of the claims made

amounts to

Sales ofGoods

, Rccoveries ofTrade Receivables

' 
shon-,a.rn Loans borrowed

Settlements of Loans

Invcstments In Treasury Bills and Repo's

Prbceeds from Maturity of Investment

Interest Received

Investments In Fixed DePosits

Investment during the Year

Interest Received

Call DePosits and Saving DePosits

Currcnt Accounts'

Current Accounts - Overdraft

5,527,116,349
t,209,392,948

5,088,400

8,39 1,084,309

(2,828,929,633)

180,425,396.37

t94.759,402.19
297 ,698,'705.-51

68,805,790.00

lrlgrrtr lrt hrnt ktlr irttlitnlcr tleducliols


